
Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

12051 C01porate Boulevard, Orlando, FL 32817; 407-382-3256 

The following is the proposed agenda for the meetings of the Board of Supervisors for the 
Holly Hill Road East Community Development District, scheduled to be held Wednesday, 
May 16, 2018 at 10:45 a.m. at the Offices of Cassidy Homes, 346 East Central Ave., 
Winter Haven, FL 33880. Questions or comments on the Board Meeting or proposed 
agenda may be addressed to Jane Gaarlandt at janeg@fishkind.com or ( 407) 382-3256. As 
always, the personal attendance of three (3) Board Members will be required to constitute 
a quorum. 

If you would like to attend the Board Meeting by phone, you may do so by dialing: 
Phone: 1-877-864-6450 Participant Code: 454943 

PROPOSED BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' MEETING AGENDA 

Administrative Matters 
• Roll Call to Confirm Quorum 
• Public Comment Period [for any members of the public desiring to speak on any 

proposition before the Board] 
1. Consideration of the Minutes of the April 18, 2018 Board of Supervisors 

Meeting 

Business Matters 
2. Consideration of Series 2017 Project (Excluding the Amenity Project) 

Completion (provided under separate cover) 
o Presentation of Ce1iificate of Completion of the Series 2017 Project 

(Excluding the Amenity Project) 
o Consideration of Resolution 2018-9, Declaring the Series 2017 Project 

(Excluding the Amenity Project) Complete 
3. Public Hearing on the Imposition of Special Assessments, Phase 2 & 3 

o Presentation of Amended and Restated Engineer's Report 
o Presentation of Amended and Restated Master Assessment Methodology 

Report 
o Public Comments and Testimony 
o Board Comments 
o Consideration of Resolution 2018-10, Levying Special Assessments 

4. Public Hearing on the District's Intent to Use the Uniform Method of 
Collection for the Expansion Area 

o Public Comments and Testimony 
o Board Comments 
o Consideration of Resolution 2018-11, Adopting the Uniform Method 

5. Consideration of Resolution 2018-12, Approving a Proposed Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2018-2019, Declaring Special Assessments to Fund the Proposed Budget, 
and Setting Public Hearing Dates Thereon [suggested date: 7118/18] 

6. Consideration of Acquisition of Common Areas (Citrus Isle) 



7. Consideration of Agreement Between Creative Association Services, Inc. and 
the District for Landscape Maintenance Services 

8. Consideration ofDanielle Fence Proposal for Installation of Walk Gate 
9. Ratification of Payment Authorization Nos. 26- 29 
10. Review of Monthly Financials (provided under separate cover) 
11. Presentation of Number of Qualified Electors in District (provided under 

separate cover) 

Other Business 
Staff Reports 

District Counsel 
Interim Engineer 
District Manager 

Supervisor Requests and Audience Comments 
Adjoumment 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Minutes 



MINUTES OF MEETING 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' MEETING 
Wednesday April18, 2018 at 10:48 a.m. 
Offices of Cassidy Homes 
346 East Central Ave., 
Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

Board Members present at roll call: 

Rennie Heath 
John Mazuchowski 
Lauren Schwenk 
Scott Shapiro 

Also, Present: 

Roy VanWyk 
Jane Gaarlandt 
Dennis Wood 
Sharon Garrett 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member 
Board Member (via phone) 

Hopping Green & Sams, P.A.(via phone) 
Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
District Engineer (via phone) 
Public 

Call to Order and Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order at 10:48 a.m. Those in attendance are outlined above . 

. SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period 

Ms. Garrett asked about the price per acre for the park. Mr. Van Wyk responded that it is 
about $79,000.00 per acre for the actual cost and the appraised market value was 
$94,000.00 per acre. Ms. Garrett asked if it has to be the lesser of the two values when 
the District gives it over. Mr. VanWyk responded that the District will acquire land at the 
lower of the two, the actual cost paid by the Developer or the market value. 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of the Minutes of 
the March 21, 2018 Board of 
Supervisors Meeting 

The Board reviewed the minutes of the March 21, 2018 Board of Supervisors Meeting. 



On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Mr. Mazuchowski, with all in favor, the Board 
approved the Minutes of the March 21, 2018 Board of Supervisors Meeting. 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Real Estate 
Appraisal Report for Holly Hill 
Road East Amenities Land 

Mr. Van Wyk explained that the Board authorized District staff to obtain an appraisal for 
the lands where the Amenity Facility will be located and noted that it was done in 
conjunction with the North Boulevard Community Development District. He explained 
that the report carne in and estimates the value of the 2.96 acres at $280,000.00 and 
shows that the Developer acquired the acreage at $235,000.00. Mr. VanWyk requested 
that the Board accept the Appraisal Report as the basis for the land acquisition for the 
Amenity Facilities. 

On MOTION by Ms. Schwenk, seconded by Mr. Heath, with all in favor, the Board 
approved the Real Estate Appraisal Report for Holly Hill Road East Amenity Facilities. 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of Payment 
Authorization Nos. 23-25 

The Board reviewed Payment Authorization Nos. 23 - 25 

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Mr. Mazuchowski, with all in favor, the Board 
ratified Payment Authorization Nos. 23 - 25. 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Review of Monthly Financials 

The Board reviewed the month financials. Ms. Gaarlandt will send them to Mr. Shapiro. 
Ms. Schwenk asked about the budget. Ms. Gaarlandt responded that a draft version of the 
preliminary budget will be sent to the Board as well as some samples of the actual cost 
for some District's that have Amenities. Mr. Heath asked why the website maintenance is 
so high. Ms. Gaarlandt responded that it is about $1,500.00 each year and this is what all 
the Districts are paying. The Board thought that North Boulevard was only paying 
$750.00. Ms. Gaarlandt indicated that the $750 might be the prorated amount but she will 
double check the cost of the website maintenance. Ms. Schwenk asked if there is a setup 



fee. Ms. Gaarlandt responded that there is a setup fee and a monthly maintenance fee. Mr. 
Heath requested that Ms. Gaarlandt provide him with the information when she finds out 
the cost. There was no Board action required at this time. 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

District Counsel- Mr. Van Wyk asked Mr. Wood about the plat for Citrus Isles and 
asked for a status of the improvements and the steps that the 
District should take next. 

District Engineer- Mr. Wood said that the plat will be recorded today. There is 
nothing further for the Board to do regarding the Citrus Isles 
portion. He noted that the other night the City Commission gave 
the District approval to modify the PUD to add some 55 foot lots 
and the design will start for the second phase soon. Mr. Van Wyk 
requested a copy of the plat once it is recorded. 

District Manager- Ms. Gaarlandt indicated that the Holly Hill Road East District was 
established within the new fiscal year so the website setup fee is 
included in the cost which is why it was $2,900.00 instead of 
$1,450.00. Ms. Gaarlandt indicated that the website setup fee was 
$2,000.00. Ms. Gaarlandt will double check it and let Mr. Heath 
know. 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Audience 
Comments 

There were no Supervisor requests or Audience comments. 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

There were no other questions or comments. Ms. Gaarlandt adjourned the meeting. 

On MOTION by Mr. Heath, seconded by Ms. Schwenk, with all in favor, the Board 
adjourned the April18, 2018 Board of Supervisors Meeting. 

Secretary I Assistant Secretary Chairman I Vice Chairman 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Resolution 2018-09 

(provided under separate cover) 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Resolution 2018-10 



RESOLUTION 2018-10 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DISTRICT PROJECTS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION AND/OR ACQUISITION OF INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS; EQUALIZING, APPROVING, CONFIRMING, AND 
LEVYING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON PROPERTY SPECIALLY 
BENEFITTED BY SUCH PROJECTS TO PAY THE COST THEREOF; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND THE COLLECTION OF SUCH 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BY THE METHODS PROVIDED FOR BY 
CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES; MAKING 
PROVISIONS FOR TRANSFERS OF REAL PROPERTY TO 
GOVERNMENTAL BODIES; PROVIDING FOR THE RECORDING OF 
AN ASSESSMENT NOTICE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Holly Hill Road East Community Development District (the "District") 
previously indicated its intention to construct certain types of infrastructure improvements and to 
finance such infrastructure improvements through the issuance of bonds, which bonds would be 
repaid by the imposition of special assessments on benefited propetiy within the District; and 

WHEREAS, the District's Board of Supervisors (the "Board") noticed and conducted a 
public hearing pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, relating to the 
imposition, levy, collection and enforcement ofthe assessments; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION. This Resolution is adopted 
pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, including without limitation, Section 
170.08, Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 2. DISTRICT AUTHORITY AND PREVIOUS ACTIONS. 

(a) The District is a local unit of special purpose government established by 
Ordinance No. 814 of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Davenport, Florida, as 
amended by Ordinance No. 841 expanding the District's original boundaries (the "Original 
District Lands") to incorporate additional acreage (the "Expansion Area"), all pursuant to the 
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended. 

(b) Prior to the expansion of the Original District Lands, the District, after notice and 
public hearing and pursuant to Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, adopted Resolution 2017-32 
authorizing the capital improvement plan ("Original Improvement Plan") described in that 
cetiain Engineer's Report for Capital Improvements dated June 2017 (the "Original Master 

1 



Engineer's Report"), equalizing and levying special assessments to defray the costs of the 
Original Improvement Plan, and levying a master assessment lien over all of the Original District 
Lands (the "Original Master Lien"), as further described in that certain Master Assessment 
Methodology Report dated September 20, 2017 (the "Original Master Assessment Report"). 

(c) In order to reflect the amendment to the District's boundaries to include the 
Expansion Area and additional infrastructure associated with the Expansion Area, the District's 
Board has dete1mined to amend and restate its Original Improvement Plan pursuant to that 
ce1tain Amended and Restated Engineer's Report for Capital Improvements dated March 21, 
2018 (the "Amended Master Engineer's Report") (attached as Exhibit A hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference), and modify the Original Master Lien levied on the 
District's Phase 2 & 3 lands, including the Expansion Area (the "Phase 2 & 3 Assessment 
Area"), as identified in the assessment roll set forth in that certain Amended and Restated Master 
Assessment Methodology Report dated March 21, 2018 (the "Amended Master Assessment 
Report" attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference). 

(d) Pursuant to this Resolution and the Amended Master Assessment Report 
presented herein, a new master assessment lien ("Amended Master Lien") will be equalized, 
approved, confirmed and levied on the Phase 2 & 3 Assessment Area, all as specified in the 
Amended Master Assessment Report, which Amended Master Lien will be levied on the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Resolution and the attachments hereto and will modify and amend 
the Original Master Lien only with respect to the Phase 2 & 3 Assessment Area as set forth 
herein. 

(e) The Original Master Lien levied on the Phase 1 lands within the District, as 
identified in the assessment roll set forth in the Amended Master Assessment Report (the "Phase 
1 Assessment Area"), shall remain unaffected by this Resolution and is hereby ratified and shall 
remain in full force and effect and secured by the valid and existing assessment liens established 
by the District. 

SECTION 3. FINDINGS. The Board hereby finds and dete1mines as follows: 

(a) The District is a local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing 
under and pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended. 

(b) The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to finance, fund, plan, 
establish, acquire, install, equip, operate, extend, construct, or reconstruct roadways, water 
facilities, sewer facilities, reclaimed water facilities, stormwater management and control 
facilities, electrical facilities, landscaping, irrigation and hardscaping in certain roadways, 
conservation mitigation, and other infrastructure projects and services necessitated by the 
development of, and serving lands within, the District, together the "Improvements." 

(c) The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to levy and impose 
special assessments to pay all, or any pmt of, the cost of such infrastructure projects and services 
and to issue special assessment bonds payable from such special assessments as provided in 
Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes. 

2 



(d) It is necessary to the public health, safety and welfare and in the best interests of the 
District that (i) the District provide the "Total Project," the nature and location of which was 
initially described in Resolution 2018-06 and is shown in the Amended Master Engineer's 
Repmi, and which the Total Project's plans and specifications are on file at 12051 Corporate 
Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32817 ("District Records Offices") and the District's local office; 
(ii) the cost of such Total Project be assessed against the lands specially benefited by such Total 
Project; and (iii) the District issue bonds to provide funds for such purposes pending the receipt 
of such special assessments. 

(e) The provision of said Total Project, the levying of such Assessments (hereinafter 
defined) and the sale and issuance of such bonds serves a proper, essential, and valid public 
purpose and is in the best interests of the District, its landowners, and residents. 

(f) In order to provide funds with which to pay all or a portion of the costs of the Total 
Project which are to be assessed against the benefitted properties, pending the collection of such 
Assessments, it is necessary for the District from time to time to sell and issue its Special 
Assessment Bonds, in one or more series (the "Bonds"). 

(g) By Resolution 2018-06, the Board determined to provide the Total Project and to 
defray the costs thereof by making Assessments on benefited property and expressed an intention 
to issue Bonds, notes or other specific financing mechanisms to provide a portion of the funds 
needed for the Total Project prior to the collection of such Assessments. Resolution 2018-06 
was adopted in compliance with the requirements of Section 170.03, Florida Statutes, and prior 
to the time it was adopted, the requirements of Section 170.04, Florida Statutes, had been met. 

(h) As directed by Resolution 2018-06, said Resolution 2018-06 was published as 
required by Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the publisher's affidavit of 
publication is on file with the Secretary ofthe Board. 

(i) As directed by Resolution 2018-06, a preliminary assessment roll was adopted and 
filed with the Board as required by Section 170.06, Florida Statutes. 

G) As required by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, upon completion of the preliminary 
assessment roll, the Board adopted Resolution 2018-07 fixing the time and place of a public 
hearing at which owners of the property to be assessed and other persons interested therein may 
appear before the Board and be heard as to (i) the propriety and advisability of the infrastructure 
improvements, (ii) the cost thereof, (iii) the manner of payment therefore, and (iv) the amount 
thereof to be assessed against each specially benefitted property or parcel, and provided for 
publication of notice of such public hearing and individual mailed notice in accordance with 
Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes. 

(k) Notice of such public hearing was given by publication and also by mail as required 
by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes. Affidavits as to such publications and mailings are on file 
in the office of the Secretary of the Board. 

3 



(1) On May 16, 2018, at the time and place specified in the resolution and notice refened 
to in paragraph (k) above, the Board met as an Equalization Board, conduct such public hearing, 
and heard and considered all complaints and testimony as to the matters described in paragraph 
(j) above. The Board has made such modifications in the preliminary assessment roll as it deems 
necessary, just, and right in the making of the final assessment roll. 

(m) Having considered the estimated costs of the Total Project, estimates of financing 
costs, and all comments, complaints, and evidence presented at such public hearing, the Board 
fmiher finds and dete1mines: 

(i) that the total estimated cost of the Total Project is as specified in the 
Amended Master Engineer's Report, which Amended Master Engineer's 
Report is hereby adopted and approved, and that the amount of such costs 
is reasonable and proper; 

(ii) it is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the cost of such Total 
Project against the propetiies within the Phase 2 & 3 Assessment Area 
specially benefited thereby using the method dete1mined by the Board set 
forth in the Amended Master Assessment Report, which results in the 
special assessments set fmih on the final assessment roll included within 
such Exhibit B (the "Assessments") and the Amended Master Lien; and 

(iii) the Amended Master Assessment Repmi is hereby approved, adopted 
and confitmed. The District ratifies its use in connection with the issuance 
of the Bonds; and 

(iv) it is hereby declared that the Total Project will constitute a special 
benefit to the parcels of real propetiy listed on said final assessment roll 
and that the benefit, in the case of each such parcel, will be equal to or in 
excess of the Assessments thereon when allocated as set forth in Exhibit 
B; and 

(v) it is in the best interests of the District that the Assessments be paid 
and collected as herein provided; and 

(vi) it is reasonable, proper, just and right for the District to utilize the 
true-up mechanisms and calculations contained in the Assessment Repmi 
in order to ensure that all parcels of real property benefiting from the Total 
Project are assessed accordingly and that sufficient assessment receipts are 
being generated in order to pay the conesponding bond debt-service when 
due. 

SECTION 4. AUTHORIZATION OF DISTRICT PROJECT. That cetiain Total 
Project for construction of infrastructure improvements initially described in Resolution No. 
2018-06, and more specifically identified and described in Exhibit A attached hereto, is hereby 
authorized and approved and the proper officers, employees and/or agents of the District are 

4 



hereby authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary or desirable to 
cause the same to be made. 

SECTION 5. ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS. The total estimated costs 
of the Total Project and the costs to be paid by Assessments on all specially benefited property 
are set forth in Exhibits A and B, respectively, hereto. 

SECTION 6. EQUALIZATION, APPROVAL, CONFIRMATION AND LEVY OF 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. The Amended Master Lien and the Assessments on the parcels 
specially benefited by the Total Project, all as specified in the final assessment roll set forth in 
Exhibit B, attached hereto, are hereby equalized, approved, confirmed and levied. Immediately 
following the adoption of this Resolution these Assessments, as reflected in Exhibit B, attached 
hereto, shall be recorded by the Secretary of the Board of the District in a special book, to be 
known as the "Improvement Lien Book." The Assessment or assessments against each respective 
parcel shown on such final assessment roll and interest, costs and penalties thereon, as hereafter 
provided, shall be and shall remain a legal, valid and binding first lien on such parcel until paid 
and such lien shall be coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other 
governmental taxes and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims. Prior to the 
issuance of any Bonds, including refunding bonds, the District may, by subsequent resolution, 
adjust the acreage assigned to particular parcel identification numbers listed on the final 
assessment roll to reflect accurate apportionment of acreage within the District amongst 
individual parcel identification numbers. The District may make any other such acreage and 
boundary adjustments to parcels listed on the final assessment roll as may be necessary in the 
best interests of the District as dete1mined by the Board by subsequent resolution. Any such 
adjustment in the assessment roll shall be consistent with the requirements of law. In the event 
the issuance of Bonds, including refunding bonds, by the District would result in a decrease of 
the Assessments, then the District shall by subsequent resolution, adopted within sixty (60) days 
of the sale of such Bonds at a publicly noticed meeting and without the need for further public 
hearing, evidence such a decrease and amend the final assessment roll as shown in the 
Improvement Lien Book to reflect such a decrease. 

SECTION 7. FINALIZATION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. When the entire 
Total Project has both been constructed or otherwise provided to the satisfaction of the Board, 
the Board shall adopt a resolution accepting the same and determining the actual costs (including 
financing costs) thereof, as required by Sections 170.08 and 170.09, Florida Statutes. Pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, regarding completion of a project funded 
by a particular series of bonds, the District shall credit to each Assessment the difference, if any, 
between the Assessment as hereby made, approved and confi1med and the proportionate part of 
the actual costs of the Total Project, as finally determined upon completion thereof, but in no 
event shall the final amount of any such special assessment exceed the amount of benefits 
originally assessed hereunder. In making such credits, no credit shall be given for bond 
financing costs, capitalized interest, funded reserves or bond discounts. Such credits, if any, 
shall be entered in the Improvement Lien Book. Once the final amount of Assessments for the 
entire Total Project has been dete1mined, the term "Assessment" shall, with respect to each 
parcel, mean the sum ofthe costs of the Total Project. 

5 



SECTION 8. PAYMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND METHOD OF 
COLLECTION. 

(a) The Assessments may be paid in not more than thirty (30) substantially equal 
consecutive annual installments of principal and interest. The Assessments may be paid in full 
without interest at any time within thirty (30) days after the completion of the Total Project and 
the adoption by the Board of a resolution accepting the Total Project, unless such option has 
been waived by the owner of the land subject to the Assessments; provided, however, that the 
Board shall at any time make such adjustments by resolution, at a noticed meeting of the Board, 
to that payment schedule as may be necessary and in the best interests of the District to account 
for changes in long and shmi term debt as actually issued by the District. All impact fee credits 
received and/or value received for impact fee credits shall be applied against the Total Project 
costs and/or the outstanding indebtedness of any debt issuance that funded the improvement 
giving rise to the credits which application may be addressed by such resolutions. At any time 
subsequent to thitiy (30) days after the Total Project has been completed and a resolution 
accepting the Total Project has been adopted by the Board, the Assessments may be prepaid in 
full including interest amounts to the next succeeding interest payment date or to the second 
succeeding interest payment date if such a prepayment is made within forty-five ( 45) calendar 
days before an interest payment date. The owner of property subject to Assessments may prepay 
the entire remaining balance of the Assessments at any time, or a portion of the remaining 
balance of the Assessment one time if there is also paid, in addition to the prepaid principal 
balance of the Assessment, an amount equal to the interest that would otherwise be due on such 
prepaid amount on the next succeeding interest payment date, or, if prepaid during the forty-five 
day ( 45) period preceding such interest payment date, to the interest payment date following 
such next succeeding interest payment date. Prepayment of Assessments does not entitle the 
property owner to any discounts for early payment. 

(b) The District may elect to use the method of collecting Assessments authorized by 
Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes (the "Uniform Method"). The District has 
heretofore taken or will use its best effmis to take as timely required, any necessary actions to 
comply with the provisions of said Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes. Such 
Assessments may be subject to all of the collection provisions of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. 
Notwithstanding the above, in the event the Uniform Method of collecting its special or non-ad 
valorem assessments is not available to the District in any year, or if determined by the District 
to be in its best interest, the Assessments may be collected as is otherwise permitted by law. The 
District may, in its sole discretion, collect Assessments by directly assessing landowner(s) and 
enforcing said collection in any manner authorized by law. 

(c) For each year the District uses the Uniform Method, the District shall enter into an 
agreement with the Tax Collector of Polk County who may notify each owner of a lot or parcel 
within the District of the amount of the special assessment, including interest thereon, in the 
manner provided in Section 197.3635, Florida Statutes. 

SECTION 9. APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS. 

(a) Pursuant to the Amended Master Assessment Repmi, attached hereto as Exhibit B, 

6 



there may be required from time to time ce1iain true-up payments. As parcels of land or lots are 
platted, the Assessments securing the Bonds shall be allocated as set forth in the Amended 
Master Assessment Report. In furtherance thereof, at such time as parcels or land or lots are 
platted, it shall be an express condition of the lien established by this Resolution that any and all 
initial plats of any pmiion of the lands within the District, as the District's boundaries may be 
amended from time to time, shall be presented to the District Manager for review, approval and 
calculation of the percentage of acres and numbers of units which will be, after the plat, 
considered to be developed. No further action by the Board of Supervisors shall be required. The 
District's review shall be limited solely to this function and the enforcement of the lien 
established by this Resolution. The District Manager shall cause the Assessments to be 
reallocated to the units being platted and the remaining prope1iy in accordance with Exhibit B, 
cause such reallocation to be recorded in the District's Improvement Lien Book, and shall 
perform the true-up calculations described in Exhibit B, which process is incorporated herein as 
if fully set forth. Any resulting true-up payment shall become due and payable that tax year by 
the landowner(s) of record of the remaining unplatted property, in addition to the regular 
assessment installment payable with respect to such remaining unplatted acres. 

(b) The District will take all necessary steps to ensure that true-up payments are made in 
a timely fashion to ensure its debt service obligations are met. The District shall record all true
up payments in its Improvement Lien Book. 

(c) The foregoing is based on the District's understanding with Cassidy Holdings Group, 
Inc., that it intends to develop the unit numbers and types shown in Exhibit B, on the net 
developable acres and is intended to provide a formula to ensure that the appropriate ratio of the 
Assessments to gross acres is maintained if fewer units are developed. However, no action by 
the District prohibits more than the maximum units shown in Exhibit B from being developed. 
In no event shall the District collect Assessments pursuant to this Resolution in excess of the 
total debt service related to the Total Project, including all costs of financing and interest. The 
District recognizes that such events as regulatory requirements and market conditions may affect 
the timing and scope of the development in the District. If the strict application of the True-Up 
Methodology to any assessment reallocation pursuant to this paragraph would result in 
Assessments collected in excess of the District's total debt service obligation for the Total 
Project, the Board shall by resolution take appropriate action to equitably reallocate the 
Assessments. Further, upon the District's review of the final plat for the developable acres, any 
unallocated Assessments shall become due and payable and must be paid prior to the District's 
approval of that plat. 

(d) The application of the monies received from true-up payments or Assessments to the 
actual debt service obligations of the District, whether long term or short term, shall be set forth 
in the supplemental assessment resolution adopted for each series of Bonds actually issued. 
Such subsequent resolution shall be adopted at a noticed meeting of the District, and shall set 
fmih the actual amounts financed, costs of issuance, expected costs of collection, and the total 
amount of the assessments pledged to that issue, which amount shall be consistent with the lien 
imposed by this Resolution. Each such supplemental resolution shall also address the allocation 
of any impact fee credits expected to be received from the provision of the project funded by the 
COlTesponding series of Bonds issued or to be issued. 

7 



SECTION 10. GOVERNMENT PROPERTY; TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO 
UNITS OF LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. Property owned by units 
of local, state, and federal government shall not be subject to the Assessments without specific 
consent thereto. If at any time, any real property on which Assessments are imposed by this 
Resolution is sold or otherwise transferred to a unit of local, state, or federal government 
(without consent of such governmental unit to the imposition of Assessments thereon), all future 
unpaid Assessments for such tax parcel shall become due and payable immediately prior to such 
transfer without any further action of the District. 

SECTION 11. ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District's Secretary is hereby 
directed to record a general Amended and Restated Notice of Assessments in the Official 
Records of Polk County, Florida, which shall be updated from time to time in a manner 
consistent with changes in the boundaries of the District. 

SECTION 12. SEVERABILITY. If any section or part of a section of this 
Resolution be declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other 
section or part of a section of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it 
clearly appears that such other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or 
necessarily dependent upon the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

SECTION 13. CONFLICTS. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, 
to the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. Nothing herein shall affect the validity or 
effect of Resolution 2017-32 with respect to the Phase 1 Assessment Area. 

SECTION 14. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage 
and adoption of this Resolution by the Board of Supervisors of the Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

8 



APPROVED THIS 16th DAY OF MAY, 2018. 

ATTEST: HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

Exhibit A: Amended and Restated Engineer's Report for Capital Improvements, dated March 
21,2018 

Exhibit B: Amended and Restated Master Assessment Methodology Report, dated March 21, 
2018 

9 



Exhibit A: 
Amended and Restated Engineer's Report for Capital Improvements, dated March 21, 2018 

10 



HOLLY H][LL ROAD lEAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT D1ISTIDCT 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 

ENG1INJEER'S REPORT 
FOR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

Prepared for: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Prepared by: 

DENNIS WOOID ENGINEERING, LLC 
1925 BARTOW ROAD 
LAKELAND, FL 33801 

PH: 863-940-2040 

MARCH 21, 2018 



HOLLYIDLLROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................... 1-2 

II. PURPOSE AND SCOPE ................................................................................................. 2-3 

III. THE DEVELOPMENT ................................................................................................... 3-4 

N. THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ................................................................................... 4 

V. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMPONENTS ...................................................... 4 

Stormwater Management Facilities .................................................................................... 5 

Public Roadways ................................................................................................................. 5 

Water and Wastewater Facilities ......................................................................................... 6 

Off-site Improvements ........................................................................................................ 7 

Alnenities and Parks .................................................................................. 7 

Miscellaneous ...................................................................................................................... 7 

VI. PERMITTING ................................................................................................................. 8-9 

VII. RECOMMENDATION ....................................................................................................... 9 

VIII. REPORT MODIFICATION ................................................................................................ 9 

IX. CONCLUSION ................................................................................................................. 10 



LIST OF EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 1- Location Map 

EXHIBIT 2- Legal Description 

EXHIBIT 3- District Boundary Map 

EXHIBIT 4- Existing Land Use Map 

EXHIBIT 5- Future Land Use Map 

EXHIBIT 6- Utility Location Map & Drainage Flow Pattern Map 

EXHIBIT 7- Summary of Opinion ofProbable Costs 

EXHIBIT 8- Summary of Proposed District Facilities 

EXHIBIT 9- Overall Site Plan 



I. INTRODUCTION 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
ENGINEER'S REPORT 

HOLLY IDLL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

The Holly Hill Road East Community Development District (the "District") is bisected by 

Nmth Boulevard West, east of Holly Hill Road, City of Davenpmt (the "City"), Polk 

County, (the "County"), Florida. The District currently contains approximately 111 acres, 

and is expected to consist of 486 single family lots, recreation I amenity areas, parks, and 

associated infrastructure. 

The CDD was established under City Ordinance No. 814, which was approved by the City 

Commission on July 10, 2017, as amended by City Ordinance No. 841, which was 

approved by the City on March 5, 2018. This Amended and Restated Engineer's Repmt 

amends the previously adopted Engineer's Repmt to reflect the addition of lands to the 

District by Ordinance 841.The additional lands are reflected as part ofPhase 3. The District 

will own and operate the public roadways and stormwater management facilities, as well 

as the landscape, irrigation, signage, and recreational facilities within the development. 

Public improvements and facilities financed, acquired, and/or constructed by the District 

will be designed and constructed to confmm to regulatory critelia from the City, the 

County, Southwest Florida Water Management District (SWFWMD), and other applicable 

agencies with regulatory jurisdiction over the development. An overall estimate of 

probable cost is of the public improvements provided in Exhibit 7 of this repmt. 

This "Capital Improvement Plan" or "Repo1t" reflects the present intentions of the District 

and the landowners. It should be noted that the location of proposed facilities and 

improvements may be adjusted during the final design, permitting, and implementation 

phases. It should also be noted that these modifications are not expected to diminish the 

benefits received by the property within the District. The District reserves the right to make 

reasonable adjustments to the development plan to meet applicable regulatory requirements 

Page 1 



of agencies with jurisdiction over the development, while maintaining comparable level of 

benefits to the lands served by the improvements. Changes and modifications are expected 

as changes in regulatory crite1ia are implemented. 

Implementation of any proposed facilities or improvements outlined in this Report requires 

wiitten approval from the District's Board of Supervisors. Estimated costs outlined in this 

rep011 are based on best available information, which includes but is not limited to previous 

experience with similar projects. Actual costs could be different than estimates because 

final engineering and specific field conditions may affect construction costs. 

All roadway improvements including sidewalks in the right-of-way and storm drainage 

collection systems (from the curb inlets to their connection to the Storm water ponds) within 

the development will be maintained by the District. Water distribution and wastewater 

collection systems (gravity lines, force mains, and lift stations) will, upon completion, be 

dedicated to the City for ownership and maintenance. 

II. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

The purpose of this Repmi is to provide engineering support to fund improvements in the 

District. This Report will identify the proposed public infi:astructure to be constmcted or 

acquired by the District along with an opinion of probable cost. 

Contained within this Report is a brief description of the public infrastructure to be 

constructed or acquired by the District. The District will finance, construct, acquire, 

operate, and maintain specific pmiions of the proposed public infrastmcture. An 

assessment methodology consultant has been retained by the District, who will develop the 

assessment and financing methodology to be applied using this Repmi. 

Page2 



The predominant portion of this Report provides descriptions of the proposed public 

infrastructure improvements, determination of estimated probable construction costs, and 

the conesponding benefits associated with the implementation of the described 

improvements. Detailed site construction plans and specifications have not yet been 

completed and permitted for the improvements described herein. The engineer has 

considered, and in specific instances has relied upon, the information and documentation 

prepared or supplied by others, and information that may have been provided by public 

entities, public employees, the landowner, site construction contractors, other engineering 

professionals, land surveyors, the District Board of Supervisors, and its staff and 

consultants. 

III. THE DEVELOPMENT 

The development will consist of 486 single family homes and associated infrastmcture 

("Development"). The Development is a planned residential community is located on the 

north and south side of North Boulevard West, and east of Holly Hill Road in the City of 

Davenport and lies within Section 4 and 5, Township 27 South, Range 27 East, all within 

the City. The Development has received zoning approval by the City. PUD approval shall 

be obtained prior to plan submission to the City, and the prope1ty has an underlying Future 

Land Use Designation of RM & RH (Residential Medium and Residential High). The 

development will be constructed in three (3) phases. 

IV. THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

The Capital hnprovement Plan, (the "CIP"), consists of public infrastructure in Phases 1, 

2, and 3. The primary pmtions of the CIP will entail stormwater pond construction, 

roadways built to an "urban" typical section, water and sewer facilities and off-site 

improvements (including tum lanes and extension of water and sewer mains to serve the 

development). 

Page 3 



There will also be stormwater shuctures and conveyance culvetts within the CIP which 

will outfall into the on-site retention ponds. These structures and pond areas comprise the 

overall stormwater facilities of the CIP. Installation of the water distribution and 

wastewater collection system will also occur at this time. Below ground installation of 

power, telecommunications and cable TV will occur, but will not be ftmded by the District. 

Installation of street lights within the public right of way will be ftmded by the District. 

As a prut of the recreational component of the CIP, a public park will be constmcted 

adjacent to Holly Hill Road and will have connectivity via walking trails to the other 

portions of the District. The public padc will be accessed by the public roadways and 

walking trails. 

V. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN COMPONENTS 

The Capital Improvement Plan includes the following: 

Stormwater Management Facilities 

Storm water management facilities consisting of storm conveyance systems and retention 

ponds are contained within the District boundaries. Stormwater runs off via roadway curb 

and gutter to storm inlets. Storm culverts convey the mnoff into the proposed retention 

ponds for water quality treatment and attenuation. The proposed stormwater systems will 

utilize dry retention for biological pollutant assimilation to achieve water quality treatment. 

The design criteria for the District's stormwater management systems is regulated by the 

City, the County, and the SWFWMD. There are no known smface waters or natural 

wetlands on or immediately adjacent to the Development. 

Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Insurance Rate Map (FEMA FIRM) Panel 

No. 12105C-0220G and 12105C-0240G (dated 12/22/2016) demonstrates that the property 

is located within Flood Zone X. Based on this information and the site topography, it does 

not appear that floodplain compensation is required. 

Page4 



During the construction of stonnwater management facilities, utilities and roadway 

improvements, the contractor will be required to adhere to a Stormwater Pollution 

Prevention Plan (SWPPP) as required by Florida Depmiment of Environmental Protection 

(FDEP) as delegated by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The SWPPP will be 

prepared to depict for the contractor the proposed locations of required erosion control 

measures and staked turbidity batTiers specifically along the down gradient side of any 

proposed construction activity. The site contractor will be required to provide the necessary 

rep01ting on various forms associated with erosion control, its maintenance and any rainfall 

events that occur during construction activity. 

Public Roadways 

The proposed public roadway sections are to be 50' R/W with 24' of asphalt and Miami 

curb or Type F curb and gutter on both sides. The proposed roadway section will consist of 

stabilized sub grade, lime rock, crushed concrete or cement treated base and asphalt wearing 

surface. The proposed curb is to be 2' wide and placed along the edge of the proposed 

roadway section for pmposes of protecting the integrity of the pavement and also to provide 

st01mwater runoff conveyance to the proposed stormwater inlets. Underdrain is provided 

as necessm·y to control groundwater and protect the roadway base material. 

The proposed roadways will also require signing and pavement markings within the public 

rights-of-way, as well as street signs depicting street name identifications, and addressing, 

which will be utilized by the residents and public. As stated above, the District's funding 

of roadway construction will occur for all public roadways. 

Page 5 



Water and Wastewater Facilities 

A potable water system inclusive of water mam, gate valves, fire hydrants and 

appurtenances will be installed for the Development. The water service provider will be 

the City ofDavenpmt Public Utilities. The water system will be a 11 looped11 system. These 

facilities will be installed within the proposed public rights-of-way within the District. This 

water will provide the potable (domestic) and fire protection services which will serve the 

entire District. 

A domestic wastewater collection system inclusive of gravity sanitary sewer mains and 

sewe1; laterals will be installed. The gravity sanitary sewer mains will be 8" diameter PVC. 

The gravity sanitary sewer lines will be placed inside ofthe proposed public rights-of-way, 

under the proposed paved roadways. Branching off from these sewer lines will be laterals 

to serve the individual lots. A lift station is anticipated for this CIP. Flow from the lift station 

shall be connected to either a force main along Nmth Blvd or within the unopened right of 

way of 1 01h Street. 

Reclaimed water is not available for this site. An irrigation well to be funded by the District 

will be installed onsite to provide irrigation within the public right of way or inigation 

water service shall be provided as part of the domestic water system design. Any water, 

sewer, or reclaim water pipes or facilities placed on private prope1ty will not be publicly 

funded. 

Page 6 



Off-Site Improyements 

The District will provide funding for the anticipated tum lanes at the development entrance. 

The site constmction activities associated with the CIP are anticipated for completion by 

phases based on the following estimated schedule: Phase 1 in 2018; Phase 2 in 2019; Phase 

3 in 2019. Upon completion of each phase of these improvements, inspection/ceiiifications 

will be obtained fi·om the SWFWMD; the Polk County Health Depmiment (water 

distribution system), Polk County Environmental Protection Commission (HCEPC) 

(wastewater collection) and the City. 

Amenities and Paries 

The District will provide funding for an Amenity Center to include the following: parking 

area, pavilion with restroom facilities, pool, tot lot, dog parldall-pmpose play field, and 

walking trails between the phases to provide connectivity to the Amenity Center. 

Miscellaneous 

The stormwater improvements, landscaping and inigation, recreational improvements, 

street lighting, and certain pe1mits and professional fees as described in this repmi, are 

being financed by the District with the intention for benefiting all of the developable real 

prope1iy within the District. The constmction and maintenance of the proposed public 

improvements will benefit the development for the intended use as a single-family planned 

development. 

Page 7 



VI. PERMITTING 

Construction permits for all phases are required and include the SWFWMD Environmental 

Resource Permit (ERP), and City construction plan approval. There are no Army Corps of 

Engineer (ACOE) jurisdictional wetlands within the CIP boundaries; therefore no permits 

are required :fi:om that agency. 

Following is a summary of required permits obtained and pending for the construction of 

the public infrastructure improvements for the District: 

PHASE 1 

Permits I Appi'Ovals Approval/ Expected Date 

Zoning Approval (City of Davenport) City of Davenport Ordinance (Approved) 

Preliminaty Plat (City ofDavenp01t) City of Davenport (Approved) 

SWFWMDERP Approved 

Construction Permits (Davenport) July 2017 

FDEP Water Approved 

FDEP Sewet· Approved 

FDEPNOI Approved 

*Amenity Center shall require separate permitting. Permits required are Construction Permit, 
FDEP, Water, FDEP Sewer, SWFWMD, and FDEP NOI. 

PHASE2 

Pet·mits I Appl'Ovals Approval/ Expected Date 

Zoning Approval (Davenport) City of Davenp01t City Ordinance (Approved) 

Preliminaty Plat (Davenpmt) July2018 

SWFWMDERP October 2018 

Constmction Permits (Davenpmt) October 2018 

FDEP Water October 2018 

FDEP Sewer October 2 0 18 

FDEPNOI September 20 18 

Page 8 



PHASE3 

Permits I Approvals Appl'oval I Expected Date 

Zoning Approval (Davenpmt) City of Davenpmt City Ordinance (Approved) 

Preliminary Plat (Davenpmt) July 2018 

SWFWMDERP October 2018 

Construction Permits (Davenpmt) October 2018 

FDEP Water October 2018 

FDEP Sewer Octo bet' 2018 

FDEPNOI October 2018 

VII. RECOMMENDATION 

As previously described within this report, the public infrastmcture as described is necessary 

for the development and functional operation as required by the City. The site planning, 

engineering design and construction plans for the infrashucture are in accordance with the 

applicable requirements of the City of Davenpmi, and the SWFWMD. It should be noted 

that the infrash·ucture will provide its intended use and function so long as the constmction 

and installation is in substantial conformance with the design construction plans and 

regulatory permits. 

Items utilized in the Opinion of Probable Costs for this report are based upon proposed plan 

infrastructure as shown on consh·uction drawings incorporating specifications in the most 

cull'ent SWFWMD and the City regulations. 

VIII. REPORT MODIFICATION 

During development and implementation of the public infrastructure improvements as 

described for the District, it may be necessary to make modifications and/or deviations for 

the plans. However, if such deviations and/or revisions do not change the overall primary 

objective of the plan for such improvements, then the costs differences would not materially 

affect the proposed cost estimates. 

Page 9 



IX. CONCLUSION 

It is our professional opinion that the public infrash·ucture costs for the CIP provided in this 

Report are reasonable to complete the construction of the public infrastmcture 

improvements. Fwthermore, the public infrastructure improvements will benefit and add 

value to lands within the Disttict at least equal to the costs of such improvements. 

The Opinion of Probable Costs of the public infmstructure improvements is only an 

estimate and is not a guaranteed maximum price. The estimated costs are based upon unit 

prices currently experienced on an ongoing and similar basis for work in the County. 

However, labor market, future costs of equipment, materials, changes to the regulatory 

permitting agencies activities, and the actual consh·uction processes employed by the 

chosen site contractor are beyond the engineer's control. Due to this inherent oppmtunity 

for changes (upward or downward) in the consh·uction costs, the total, fmal construction 

cost may be more or less than this estimate. 

Based upon the presumption that the CIP constmction continues in a timely manner, it is 

our professional opinion that the proposed public infrash·uctme improvements when 

conshucted and built in substantial conformance with the approved plans and 

specifications, can be completed and used for their intended fimction. Be advised that we 

have utilized historical costs and direct unit costs from site contractors and consultants in 

the County, which we believe to be necessary in order to facilitate accuracy associated with 

the Opinion of Probable Costs. Based upon the information above, it is our professional 

opinion that the acquisition and construction costs of the proposed CIP can be completed 

at the cost as stated. 

Page 10 



! ·: I 

fC~SJ.i..!A'<E 0 I - -==:r:== ---- ,, 
~ A' 

EXPANSION < I -:1-~----'~ 
PARCELS •• I I 15 ~ 

EJ 
= 

J~;O~TH.BlVD_W 

X ~~~ -- · 
...J , ...... 0 -----

'-L 
L. 

7 

10 9 a 
11 

13 

I !2 

r--' 
I 

I 
I 

- OAVENFCR:r. BL\l{)-
~::::;._::::;-, r-

L-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~ N 

Dennis • . 87?? >- - . 
Wood ' ~ · - -Enginee.ring 

- LI.C 

OFFICE: (863) 94~2040 
fAX: (a63) 940-2044 
CEU: (863) 662.0018 

1925 BARTOW ROAD 
l.AKE!..ANO, Fl 33801 

DENNIS WOOD. PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 
EMAIL: denniswoodengineering@gmai l.com 

EXISTING DISTRICT 
-, 

EXPANSION PARCELS 

EXHIBIT 1 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST CDD 

LOCATION MAP 
NO 

SCALE 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST· COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

OEOIN AT THE NORTHWilST CORNER 01' SAID TRACT 2!1, liND nUN TNENC6 /\LONG THE NORTH LINE TliEREOF 5·09'53'06"-E, 31G.10 FEET TO THC NORlHI:I\ST 
CoRNlHl TliERI:OF, SAID PONT AlSO DEING TtiE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 5/IID TAIICT 21; THENCI! ALONG THE WCST LINE OF SAID TMCT 21 N·00'25'ilB"·W, E;q0,90 
FEET TO A POINT ON Tttl! SOUTH MAINT/\INED RIGHT· OF·WAY LINE OF FOUilST LIIKE DRIVI! ACCORDING TO THE MIIP AS RECORDED IN MAP DOOK 17, PAGES 
lOO·lOO,PUOLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA! THENCE /\lONG SAID SOUTII MAINTAINED niGHT·OF-WAY UNE TIIU FOllOWING THREE (3) COURSES! 1) 
5·99'49'04"-E, DS.OO Fl!r:l'; TI·JeNCC 2) S·OO'O!I'06•-e, 71.211 FEET; THENCE a) S·O!I'SO'S7*·E, 160.16 FEET TO A POINT ON THI! EIIST UNE OF SAID Tl1ACT 21; THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID MI\INTAINEO RIGHT-OF· WAY UNE, AND AlONG TtiE 1!1\STliNE OP SAID TMCT 21 S-00'23'10"· E, 690.!11 r.GETTO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, 
$1\ID POINT AlSO DEING lHI! NOATHWI!ST CORNER OP S/IID TRACT 27J THENCI! /\LONG THE NORT1i liNI! OP SAID TMCT 27 S·D9'S3'06"· 1!, !126.90 FEET TO THE 
NOATtii!AST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE ALONG THE WllST liNE OF SAID TRACT 23 N·00'23'11*·W, 635.57 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED 
RIGHT-OF-WAY UNE OF FORCST lAKE DRIVI!; niENCE AlONG SAID SOUTH MAINTAJNI!D RIGHT.OF·WAY UN!l Tlil! FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES: 1) 5-09'96'39"-E, 
107.99 FEET; THENCE 2) S.09'59'SO"-E, 139.6!1 FEET TO A POINT ON THt: 1:1\ST UNE OF SAID TMCT 29; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH MAINT/IJNED RIGHT·OF·WAY 
LINE, AND ALONG THE EAST liNC OF SAID TMCT 23 S·00'23'04H·E, 694.92 FEIIT TO THE SOUTiiEIIST CORNER THEREOF, SAID POINT /\ISO DEING THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF SAID TRACT lG; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LIN I! OF SAID TRACT 20 5-00'22'59"·D,63S.BO FEET TO II POINT ON THE NOIITII RIGHT·OF-WIIY LIND OF NORTH 
DOULEVIIRD WEST PER O.R. UOOK 7111, PAGE 709 OF THE PUOLIC RECORDS OF POlK COUNTY, FlORIO/\; THENCE ALONG S/110 NORTH RIGHT·OF WAY LINE PER O.A. 
DOOK 781, PAGE 709, AND PER O.R. DOOK 701, PAGE GG7, AND PER o .n. DOOK 701, PAGE 69G, /Ill IN THE PUDUC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
N·D9'48'44w·W, 1SOS.GG FEET TO II POINT ON THE WEST liNE OF S/IID TRACT 29; TIIENCE ALONG THe WI!ST LIN I! Of SAID lTIIICT 29 N·00'2G'OG"· E, 039.72 FEET TO 
THE POINT OP BEGINNING. 

PROPERTY DESCRIDI!O CONTAINS 28.50 ACRES, MORC OR lESS. 

~ 

OF.GIN liT THC NORniEI\ST CORNER OF S'IIID TRACT 12 AND RUN THENCe ALONG TliE EAST liNG lliEREOf', 5-00'.!19'44"·1!, GS0.29 FEET TO THE SOUTHI:AST CORNEA 
THEREOF; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH liN I! OF SAID TRACTS 12, 13, 111, 15 AND 16 N-09' 20'55"-W, 1620.90 fEET TO II POINT ON THE 1!1\ST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
HOLLY Hill AOAO, PER O.R. BOOK 781, PAGI! 719 PUOLIC RECORDS OF POlK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCI! AlONG SAID 1!1\ST AIGHT.OF-W/IY LINI!, liND THEN 
CONTINUING AlONG THE EAST AIGHT·OF·WAY OF HOllY HILL 110110, PER O.R. DOOK 701, PAGE 715 PUDliC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FlORIDA N-DD'29'26"·W, 
643.66 f~IIT TO II POINT ON THI! NORTH liNE OF SAID TnACT 16; THENCE ALONG TtiE NORTH liNE OF SAID TRACTS 16, 15, 111, 19 AND 12, S·09'BII'47•·E, 1626.611 
FEET TOniE POINT OP DEGINNING. 

PROPIMV DESCRIOEO CONTAINS: 24.17 ACRES, MORE OR lESS. 

~ 

llEGIN /IT THE NOIITHWEST CORNER OF SAID TMCT 10,/IND RUN Tlii!NCEAlONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID Tl1ACTS 16, 15, 14, AND 18 N·O!l'49'00"·E1 1909.54 FEET 
TO THE NORlliEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT19;TNENCE AlONG THE EAST LINE OFSAIO TMCT 13 ANDTHC SOUTHERLY PIIOJECTION THEREOF, S·00'47'BS"·J:, 667,62 
FEl!T TO A POINT ON ntE SOUTii UNE OFTIIE NORTHWEST" OF THE SOUntWEST II OF SAID SECTION 04; TliENCE AlONG SAID SOUTH LIN I! N-O!l'30'D2"·W, 891.52 
FEET; lliENCE AlONG THE NORTIICRlY PROJECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID TMCT 1D AND THE EIIST liNE OF SAID TRACT 19 5-00'40'115"·1l. 667.55 FEET TO THE 
SOUTUEAST CORNER TUEREOF; TtiENCE AlONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TMCT 19 5-0!1'30'27"-W, 931.42 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST' CORNEA OF SAID TMCT 19, 
AlSO DEING UIE NORT11EAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 31; TI'IENCE AlONG THE EAST liNE OF SAID TMCT 31 S·00'47'1D"·E, 620.70 FEET TO II POINT ON THE NORTH 
RIGHT·OF·WI\Y LINE OF COUNTY ROAD S47 (00' AIGHT·OF·WAV WIDTH); TtiENCE ALONG SAID NORTH RIG~IT·OF·WIIY UNE S.09'29'00"·W, 647.50 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE WEST LIN I! OF SAID TMCT 32; THENCE /I LONG SAID WEST LINE TH£11EOF, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID TMCT 17 AND THE N0All1ERLY PROJECTION 
THEREOF, N·OO'IIG125"·W,1290.00 FEET TO II POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OFTHE SOUTHWESTU OFlHESOUTIIWEST U OF SAID SECTION 04, ALSO DE lNG THE SOUTH 
UNC OF THE NORTHWEST K OF THE SOUTHWeST K OF SAID SECTION 04; THENCE AlONG TfiE SOUTI1ERLY PROJECTION OF THE WEST UNE OF SAID TMCT 16, liND 
ALONG SAID WEST liNE N-00'4S'Sl"·W, 609.151 FEET TO TfiG POINl' 01' BEGINNING. 

PROPEMV DESCRIDI!D CONTAINS: 44.47 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

~ 

DEGIN AT II 5/D" IRON JIOD AND CAP "LB D135" STANDING ATTHE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TnACT22, SAID J!OINT AlSO OEING THE NOJITiiWEST CORNER OF 
'i'iiii'CT 27 OF S/IID HOllY Bill GROVE & FRUIT COMP/\NV SUDDIVISION, liND RUN AlONG THI! WCST liN I! OF SAID TTIACT 22 N·00'2S'47"-W, 61\2.49 FEET TO THE 
INTERSECTION OF SAID WEST liNE liND lHE SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT· OF-WAY OF FORESTlAKI! DRIVE PER MAP BOOK 17, PAGE :100, PUDLIC RECORDS OF POLK 
COUNTY, FLORIDA: THENCE AlONG S/110 SOUTH MAINTAINED AIGHT·OF·WAYTHE FOLlOWING THREE (9) COURSES; 1) N·09'47'53''·E,100.l9 FEET: 2) THENCI! 
S•O!I'M'22.11-E, 206,2.7 FEETi THENCe 3) 5-89'4!1'49"·E, 20.44 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OP SAID SOUTH MIIINTIIINEO RIGIIT-OF·WAY liND THE EAST LINE OF SAID 
TnACT22; THENCE ALONG S/110 1!1\ST LINE S-00'22'41"·E, 6~0.10 FEET TO II 5/0" 1110N ROD AND CAP "LD 0195" STANDING ATTfiC SOUTHI!/\ST COnNER OF SAID 
TMCT22, SAID POINT AlSO DEING THil: IIIOATtiEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 27; THENCE AlONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TMCT:Z2, AlSO DEING THE NORTH LINE 
OF SAID TMCT 27, N-09'SS'2G"·W, 826.76FEET TO n 1E POINl' OP DEGINNING. 

Till! II DOVE DESCRIDED lANDS CONTAIN 11.02 ACRES, MOOB OR lESS. 

~ 

BEGIN /IT A 5/8" IRON ROD Willi CAP ''lO 0135" STANDING AT THE INTEJISECTION OPTUC WEST UNI! OF SAID TMCT 25 AND THE NORTH RIGHT·OF·WAY OF NOAT11 
OOUli!VAnD WeST PER OFFICIAL RECORDS DOOK 794, PAGE 787, PUOLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND RUN AlONG SAID WllST liNE N·00'22.'3D"·W, 
635.40 FGET TO 115/0" IRON ROD ANO CAP "LO 0195" STANDING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNEA OF SAID TRACT 25, SAID POINT AlSO BEING lliE SOUTHWEST CORNER 
OF SAID TMCT 241 THENCE ALONG THE WEST liNE OF SAID TMCT 211 N·00'22'30"·W, 040.57 FEET TO A 5/0" IRON ROD AND CAP "LB 0135" STANDING AT THE 
INTERSECTION Of S/IID WGST liNE AND THE SOUnt MAINTAINm niGm·OP·WAY OP FOREST l/II<E DRIVI! P~R MAP DOOK 17, PAGE 100, PUDLIC RECORDS or- POLK 
COUNTY, FLORIO/\: THENCE AlONG SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT·Or~WAY THe FOllOWING EIGiiT (D) COURSES; 1) N·09'47'20"·E, 165.61 FEET; THENCe 
2)5·0!1'23'3~"-E, 50.51 FEET; TUENC~ 9) S·ll4'02'1S"·E, 20.73 FEET: THENCE (4) 5-69'03'.9.9"-E, 26.63 FEET; TliENCE (5)S·S!I'l0'02"· E, 25.17 FEI:I'J THENCE (6) -
S-40'!1Z'59"·G, 25,66 FEI!T; THENCE (7) S-22'D7'S~"·I!, :11.91 FEI!T; TH~NCE (O)S-D7'00'5!l"·E1 14.49 FGilT TO THG EAST LINE OP SAID TRACT 24: THENCE ALONG SAID 
EAST liNG S·00'19'41"·E. 556.58 FEET TO A 5/G" IRON nOD AND CAP "lD 0135" STANDING Ill TliG SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TMCT .24, SI\ID POINT lllSO DEING 
THE NORTHEAST CORNEll OF SAID mACT 25; TUENCE ALONG THE EASTliNE OF SAID TMCT 2!l S-D0'1!1'41"· E, 636.04 fEET TO TUE NORTH RIGHT· OF-WIIV OP NORTH 
BOUlEVARD WEST PER OFFICIAl RECORDS 0001< 7911, PAGE 787, PUOUC RECORDS OF POlK COUNTY, FLOOID/1; THENCE AlONG SAID NORTH OIGHT·DF·WIIY 
N·09'40'3G"·W, 824.57 FEET TO THE POINTOP BEGINNING, 

THI! II DOVE D~SCAIOED lANDS CONTAIN 9.40 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

ALL THE ADDVE DESCRIOEO lANDS CONTAIN 111.521\CRES, MORE OR l£SS 

Dennis ~-:·· .,.. · · 

- Wood'{ 'F·' 
Engineering 
,_ LLO 

OFFICE: (063) 940·2040 
FAX: (063) 9~0-2044 
CELL: (063) GG2·0010 

1925 DAI\TOW 1\01\D 
LAI<ElliND, FL 33001 

DENNIS WOOD, PI\OFESSIONIIL ENGINEI!I\ 
EMAIL: dertnls@woodclvll.com 

EXHIBIT 2 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

(NOT A SURVEY) 

PAGf 1 OF 1 

-



i ( - iff -=..J 

IT"l 
·?. 1:: 

' , I . ..,_ " 
\l FORESl L!AJ(E DRI /• --=-- . 

F~ -- _j 1~ ~ .tj· -~"' 
- EXPANSION ,_ -~ , ~~- f--~--- ~ • 

1 - . PARCELS --1---. I ' __ 1 · ~- ~- ' • , 
-- t---_ - .- :;::., - - ~ .=: 

.~ 

(- • L::; 
c- -, 

('1 
- ~ -= 

I ---..... --- ~1:: § -~ -' =:;:o f- - : - -~< ~ - . - _ z - . -- r-- 01 TRICT - ~ ~ I • • ' • I :-: ,.:.: : _ _ ] ~!.-----" BOU <OARY .~ - .""" ANo,ul..s,._,j~ 
- - 5 I ~ r- -- ' ~ 1'~11 I ~ d L I I'(QR11-! B LI/OW -' ,. . . .-. . I ·X •!j I I : 

~ ~ r- ,-,I I 1: I I I ~I rr ' ~ .:.._-==l:dl:·;-m f. 
I ~ =l I I IL.__! . ~I ~LL.lCADiil100P--#- ~~ :.~~~~r.:~- ,-

L, I ;:: - \} :::' '"" ._J """""' • 

I _j ' - t I -- --:'~= ;. -'1~_-J I I _/ '" . ··.J--1 ..: - - -3 ::..: 
_..-f- OIST ICT 

1 
DISTRICT ~ :: _ ~~E-: I ! I~ BOUN"RY ' BOUNOARY ~:~,~-

1 I o ··-~. -.c..., ,. /. -~- --. ·u - -. -. -r- - z: 1--"~<s_ - .... ~ . :>:::----~ 
-.>·· .• - . ·Js. n t:" 

: I •cf · .. • .._ ~ • : ·t -:; __ , =~ =-. ~ ~- ~ l ___ . . I "~:5- '~: '-~~ 
I I • .-:R II· 

I j ' ·. ~-=:' 'f • · , ,;1...._ - . : 

I ...___, , -- 1 ·j , ' ili_i.:i!N"Hdo.l.{:.••e.r_ .. _ f4 L~ ' -ftr= I '¥) !1 cvANGEw..oR-- .. =nr-H~ -. I 

I ·1 - - - l::i----.1~ ~"-f= -

I I I -· ~· "ILL:'. I "' II 1 -=:. 8~ ~hiCN.S:r.w 
- I I - E =< 

_ 1 ll I I ' I : o'AvENPOR-T-B!.vt)- ' ~ . ; - . - · I -
' ' 

D ennis . ,.. · -. 
- 4 

W ood -
- I 

Engineering 
- u.c 

OffiCf: (863) 940-2CAO 
FAX: (Boll 940-2044 
cru: (6&31 o62-00JS 

192S BARTOW ROAD 
LAKELAND, Fl 33801 

DENNIS WOOD, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 
EMAIL: denniswoodengineering@gmail.com 

._ EXlSTING DISTRICT 

D EXPANSION PARCELS 

EXHIBIT 3 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COD 

DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP 
NO 

SCALE 



D EXISTING COD DISTRICT 

D EXPANSION PARCELS 

OFfiC£= (863) 9.:0-2040 

- Wood - ~~ 
FAX: (&63) 9.:0-2044 
C8.l: (8631 662.0018 -

Dennis • 

Engineering 1925 BARTOW ROAD 
- LLC I..AJ(ELAND, Fl33S01 

DENNIS WOOD, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 
EMAIL: denniswoodengineering@gmail.com 

EXHIBIT 4 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COD 

ZONING MAP 
CITY OF DAVENPORT 

AG A&ric:..att.."'C 0.. 1. 05ce 

TN·1 7::o61ic:>!!!Ke;;l'.to:r~ ( C.:< Cf.ia.F~ 

N 

NO 
SCALE 

== T:'~·Z 7tiCilic1'121 ,._ii;l'.l>Oit~ t::J D=tl >:::·:..-.:::~·.:..-, E:.Gr..s OGri:: 

?.=,..~ :=~"\tisi. ~ r:=J Al'J-.1 1~--Uz;;: 

~~2 ?~~ =:s-s:,s C.~ C;>::·-"'rl~ 

!'!-1 ;;.~..rDsl l C2 e:.,..,.,. ... ::OsJ 

~ .. 2 :;~n3z4 C C.::. C;,:r.;.o:ie..~l 

R~ F.s:.:k!n:i:J D C-T ~k:':isl 

~..; R~~~aJ t·1 ilol.sn~..=...--T.;."'t',':rt.,~: 

l:.L-;.1 M±~.:.rri:y -- "-~ in~ 

IW.."-2 hiQ.?'.!rnO:y liiiiiiiiil;t Fl-1 F.,:X o: L-rt~ 

r..t:.~ t..~!:-t=a'"nl't L ? l-2 r=·.:t.ic e: lr~l'W 

u.:....: M~z~y = Fr :Z ;:~~ :: 1.-~"l!'J 
__ r:J.;..1 ld.!.n:bc:u:ed Hcmes \S1.td-.~j r=:J Fl-i ;:..e::;c:: L-s::uic.:w --~ -~~a ,_,,.~P•"'-1 r::'l ON ee~,~~ 



~ HAINES CIT 
. r= I - -

*1 I RH 

OP 

Qennis ., ..., ,,.. ,.._,,.. 
W FAX: (8631 90-2044 
_ ood .• cat; (863l 66Hl018 

Engineering 
=- u.c 1925 BARTOW ROAD 

l.AKEI.AHD, A. 33801 
DelNlS WOOD, PROi'ESSIONAL ENGINEER 
EMAIL: denniswoodengineering@gmail.com 

D EXISTING DISTRICT 

D EXPANSION PARCELS 

Legend 

,_ Railroads 

;~~= ::r~o;: 
-~ L_ Part&tS 

· ~ Water 60d es 
1---,---,r--ll 0 Davenport Cny LIITIIIS 

~ Pollc County Future Land Use 

Davenport Future Land Use 
D Residential Low (RL) 

Residential M edium (RM} 

CJ Residential High (RH) 

r::::J Residential Park (RP) 
Commerce Activity Center (CAC) 

_ Office PaJ1<: (OP) 
Mi::ed Use (MU) 

D ManufacturingJWarehouse (MW} 

~ lr.dUSlnal{IND) 

- GovemmenUinstiMitlnal {GI) 
Reueatoo (REC) ~ 
Conse:vation (CON) 

EXHIBIT5 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COD 

2030 FUTURE LAND USE 
CITY OF DAVENPORT 

N 

NO 
SCAL 



,...._ 
N . . 

~ . 
V'l 

:::J 

·-

I~ --
~::;;::; 
~-

1: 

... __ _ 

:g ·o r. c 

J 
~ 

~ s:: 
-E 

I I 

I 

~ 

FC~s.HkKE ORI 

EXPANSION <I I' I-
PARCELS 

1\:0RntBLVOW 
;.: D 

X 
tl) 

:> 

·--. 

·~ 

u,--;-~ I l I : I ~ 
- -- -If I I ·- -'---- 11 • • ...... (r' 

~~ T ..u I'""'' I CiD I r~ 1 ~ ,......,,--.=--.1 .--:-

1 Ill R r. l.i\J :; !.: f:: Y I II S 

-

~ •o·Hc 11 ' • s· :>' v 1 N 
·-(W)~(W) (i5 tiS=:tl(l :no- ·- DAVEJI,"POR:r•cL\((). ·~ - rw. - - ,... 

~ennis • . - · . __ 

Wood ~ · - Engineering 
- u.c 

OFRCE: (803) S4G'2040 
FAX: (863) 94G-20« 
tal: (803) 562-0018 

1925 BARTOW ROAO 
LAKELAND, FL 33801 

DENNIS WOOD, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 
EMAIL: denniswoodengineering@gmail.com 

LEGEND 

COD DISTRICT 

-- (W) -- EXlSTlNG WATER •WN AS NOTED 

-- (FM)-- EXISTlNG FORCE MAIN AS NOTED 

H.C. ·HAINES OTY 
OAV • DAVENPORT 
P.C. • POLK COUNTY 

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 6 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COD 

WATER & FORCE MAINS 

! 
I 
NO 

SCALE 



r~ 
-,. 
-
'=' 
= 
c: -

1 
I 

I 

I 

I 

Dennis • """' 18~1 ,.,_,... 
- FAX: [8631 94~204-4 

W ood · cat: !8631 662-0018 -
§_ngineering 1925 BARTOW ROAD 

u..c UU<EtANO, FL 33801 

DENNIS WOOD, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 
EMAIL: denniswoodengineering@gmail.com 

PARCELS , ew-••• fttf 
,_ 

LEGEND 

~ FLOW DIRECTION 

COD DISTRICT 

Dl~lrtH~
:::OUI'l !:-AP'!I '-

... r 

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 6 
HOLLY HILL RD EAST COD 

DRAINAGE FLOW PATIERN MAP 
NO 

SCALE 



Composite E"hiblt 7 
Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 

Summary of Probable Cost 

(l!umlle[ of lots 204 100 102 486 

IIJf[il1ttl!!itYCS ,,)(GI e!wtl ~ ~ I21al 
Offslte Improvements llHSit7l $ 120,000 $ 125,000 $ 180,000 $ 425,000 

Stormwater Management lli12JI3liSl(G)(7l $ 2,427,600 $ 1,190,000 $ 2,165,800 $ 5,783,400 

Utilities (Water, sewer, & Street Lighting) (IJ(SJI7K91 $ 1,142,400 s 560,000 s 1,019,200 $ 2,721,600 

Roadway 11114115117J $ 882,300 s 432,500 $ 787,150 $ 2,101,950 

Entry Feature & Slgnage UK7HII 
$ 100,000 $ 170,000 $ 365,000 $ 635,000 

Parks and Amenities 111(71 $ 404,963 $ 140,000 $ 255,037 $ 800,000 

Contingency $ 200,000 $ 105,000 $ 191,000 $ 496,000 

TOTAL $ 5,277,263 $ 2,7l2,500 $ 4,963,187 $ 12,962,950 

Notes: 
1. Infrastructure consists of roadway Improvements, Stormwater management facilities, master 

sanitary sewer lift station and utilities, entry feature, landscaping and slgnage, and 
neighborhood parl<s. 

2. Excludes grading of each lot In conjunction with home construction, which will be provided by 
home builder. 

3. Includes Stormwater pond excavation. 
4. Includes sub-grade, base, asphalt paving, curbing, and civil/site engineering. 
5. Includes subdivision Infrastructure and civil/site engineering. 
6. Stormwater does not include grading associated with building pads. 
7. Estimates are based on 2017 cost. 
8. Includes entry features, slgnage, hardscape, landscape, Irrigation and fencing. 
9. COD will enter into a Lighting Agreement with Duke Energy for the street light poles and lighting 

service. 
10. Estimates based on 486 lots. 



Exhibit 8 
Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 

Summary of Proposed District Facilities 

District Infrastructure Construction Ownership Capital Financing* 

Entry Feature & Slgnage District District District Bonds 

Stormwater Facilities District District District Bonds 

lift Stations/Water/Sewer District City of Davenport District Bonds 

Street lighting/Conduit District District District Bonds 

Road Construction District District District Bonds 

Parks and Amenities District District District Bonds 

*Costs not funded by bonds will be funded by the developer 

Operation and 
Maintenance 

District 

District 

City of Davenport 

District 

District 

District 



.00~ • .1 "::£ :z-



Exhibit B: 
Amended and Restated Master Assessment Methodology Report, dated March 21, 2018 

11 



FISH KIND 
& ASSOCIATES 

AMENDED & RESTATED MASTER 
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 
REPORT 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

March 21, 2018 

Prepared for: 

Members of the Board of Supervisors, 
Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 

Prepared by: 

Fish kind & Associates, Inc. 
12051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, Florida 32817 



AMENDED & RESTATED 
MASTER ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY REPORT 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

March 21, 2018 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Purpose 

This "Amended & Restated Master Assessment Methodology" dated March 21, 2018 
("Methodology"), effectively amends and restates the District's "Master Assessment 
Methodology Report," dated September 20, 2017 ("Adopted Methodology") in order to 
reflect an amendment to the District's boundaries to include additional acres and 
associated infrastructure improvements not included in the Adopted Methodology. The 
Methodology provides a system for the allocation of non-ad valorem special assessments 
securing the repayment of bond debt planned to be issued by the Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District ("District") to fund beneficial public infrastructure 
improvements and facilities. The Methodology applied herein has two goals: (1) quantifying 
the special benefits received by properties within the District as a result of the installation 
of the District's improvements and facilities, and (2) equitably allocating the costs incurred 
by the District to provide these benefits to properties in the District. 

The District plans to implement a capital improvement program ("CIP") that will allow for 
the development of property within the District. The District plans to fund the majority of its 
CIP through bond debt financing. This bond debt will be repaid from the proceeds of non
ad valorem special assessments levied by the District's Board of Supervisors. These 
special assessments will serve as liens against properties within the boundary of the 
District that receive a special benefit from the CIP. This Methodology is designed to 
conform to the requirements of Chapters 170, 190, and 197 of the Florida Statutes with 
respect to special assessments and is consistent with our understanding of the case law 
on this subject. 



1.2 Background 

The District, as amended, includes approximately 111 gross acres of property within its 
boundaries. The District is generally located to the south of Forest Lake Drive and to the 
east of Holly Hill Road within the City of Davenport, Florida. At build-out, the District is 
expected to contain approximately 486 single-family lots, landscaping, common and 
recreation areas, and related infrastructure. The land use plan for the District is found in 
Table 1 (all tables are found in the attached Appendix). 

1.3 Special Benefits and General Benefits 

Improvements undertaken by the District create both special benefits and general benefits 
to property owners located within and surrounding the District. However, the general 
benefits to the public at large are incidental in nature and are readily distinguishable from 
the special benefits which accrue to property located within the District. It is the District's 
CIP that enables properties within the District's boundaries to be developed. Without the 
District's CIP there would be no infrastructure to support development of land within the 
District. Without these improvements development of property in the District would be 
prohibited by law. 

There is no doubt that the general public and property owners outside the District will 
benefit from the provision of District infrastructure. However, these are incidental to the 
District's CIP, which is designed solely to meet the needs of property owners within the 
District. Properties outside the District do not depend upon the District's CIP to obtain, or 
to maintain, their development entitlements. This fact alone clearly distinguishes the 
special benefits which District properties receive compared to those properties lying 
outside of the District's boundaries. 

1.4 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 

For special assessments to be valid under Florida law, there are two requirements. First, 
the properties assessed must receive a special benefit from the improvements paid for via 
the assessments. Second, the assessments must be fairly and reasonably allocated to the 
properties being assessed. 

2 



If these two characteristics of valid special assessments are adhered to, Florida law 
provides some latitude to legislative bodies, such as the District's Board of Supervisors, in 
approving special assessments. Indeed, Florida courts have found that the mathematical 
perfection of calculating special benefit is likely impossible. Only if the District's Board was 
to act in an arbitrary, capricious, or grossly unfair fashion would its assessment methods 
be overturned. 

1.5 Special Benefits and General Benefits 

The new infrastructure improvements included in the CIP create both: (1) special benefits 
to the District and (2) general benefits to properties outside the District. However, as 
discussed below, these general benefits are incidental in nature and are readily 
distinguishable from the special benefits which accrue to the District. The CIP described in 
the District Engineer's Report enables the District to be developed. Without the CIP, there 
would be no infrastructure to support development of the District. 

There is no doubt that the general public, and property owners outside the District, will 
benefit from the provision of the CIP. However, these benefits are incidental to the CIP, 
which is designed solely to meet the needs of the District. Lands outside the District do 
not depend upon the CIP to obtain, or to maintain, their development entitlements. This 
fact alone clearly distinguishes the special benefits which developable property in the 
District receive compared to those lying outside of the boundaries of the District. 

Finally, as shown in the Methodology, the estimated cost of the CIP totals $12,962,950. 
The District plans to issue bonds to fund these costs, with total District bond principal 
estimated at a maximum of $17,575,000. There are 110.66 assessable acres within the 
District. Therefore, the average cost per assessable acre in the District is $158,820 on a 
financed basis. According to data from the Polk County Property Appraiser ("PA"), the fair 
market value of the land in the District currently averages $20,649 per acre. Therefore, as 
illustrated in the table immediately below, the total cost of the land with the proposed 
improvements implemented is estimated at approximately $179,469 per acre. 

3 



Demonstration of Special Benefit for Properties in the District 

Category 
Maximum Bonds Necessary to Fund CIP 

Assessable Acres within District 
CIP Financed Cost Per Gross Acre 

Value of Unimproved Land/Acre* 
Total Cost of Improved Land per Acre 

Est. Avg. Value of Finished Home and Lot 
Value of Lot @ 25% 

Density/Assessable Acre 
Est. Value of Finished Lots/Land per Acre 

Net Benefit per Acre from COD Improvements 

Amount 
$17,575,000 

111 
$158,820 
$20,649 

$179,469 

$200,000 
$50,000 

3.64 
$182,089 

$2,620 
*Average of the 2017 values of all assessable District land provided by the Polk County Property 
Appraiser. 

Based on the land development plan, and market research by the District's Financial 
Advisor ("FA"), the estimated average value for a single-family home to be developed in 
the District is $200,000. The typical relationship between the total price of a new home 
and its finished lot is 25%. So, the average home lot in the District is expected to have a 
retail value of $50,000. 

The land use plan anticipates a gross residential density of 3.64 units per assessable acre. 
Therefore, the average value per acre for properties developed into residential lots is 
$182,089. Thus, the estimated net special benefit to District lands averages $2,620 per 
acre. In other words, the installation of the CIP will increase the market value of the land 
within the District in excess of the cost of the assessments. 

2.0 CIP Plan of Finance 

2.1 Phased Infrastructure Installation 

The District will install its public infrastructure and improvements on a phased basis, as 
outlined in more detail in the "Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 
Engineer's Report for Capital Improvements", dated September 2017, as amended by the 
Amended and Restated Master Engineer's Report, dated March 21, 2018 (together, the 
"Engineer's Report"), as prepared by Dennis Wood Engineering, LLC ("District Engineer"). 
As outlined in the Engineer's Report, the District will install the infrastructure necessary to 

4 



serve the lands within Phases 1, 2 and 3. Descriptions of the District lands can be found in 
Exhibit "A". The District infrastructure and improvements for Phase 1 are designed to serve 
and specially benefit the lands within Phase 1. Similarly, the District infrastructure and 
improvements for Phases 2 and 3 are designed to serve and specially benefit the lands 
within Phases 2 and 3, respectively. The estimated costs of the Phase 1, 2 and 3 District 
infrastructure and improvements (and the estimated costs for the District's entire CIP) are 
presented in Table 2. 

2.2 Bond Requirements 

The District intends to finance the majority of its CIP by issuing bonds. These bonds will 
be issued in several series, as development progresses within the District. The District's 
first series of bonds is expected to be issued in the 2017 calendar year ("Series 2017 
Bonds") and will help fund the costs of the Phase 1 District infrastructure and 
improvements. The Phase 1 District infrastructure and improvements will be assessed 
solely to properties located within Phase 1. Similarly, the Phase 2 and 3 District 
infrastructure and improvements will be assessed solely to properties located within Phase 
2 and 3, respectively. A number of component funds comprise the total principal of the 
bonds to be issued by the District. These funds may include but are not limited to 
acquisition and construction, capitalized interest, a debt service reserve, underwriter's 
discount, and issuance costs. 

An estimate of the initial bond issuances required to fund the Phase 1, 2 and 3 District 
infrastructure and improvements is found in Table 3. As bonds are issued by the District 
over time, Fishkind will issue supplemental assessment methodology report(s) detailing the 
particulars of each specific bond issue. The supplemental report(s) will detail the terms, 
interest rates, and costs associated with a specific series of bonds. The supplemental 
report(s) will also detail the specific bond debt service assessments for properties that 
have been assessed to secure each bond issuance. 

5 



3.0 Assessment Methodology 

3.1 Assessment Foundation 

The assessment methodology associated with the allocation of the costs of the CIP is a 
four-step process. First, the District Engineer determines the costs for the District's 
infrastructure and related improvements. Second, an estimate of the amount of bonds 
required to finance the infrastructure improvements is calculated. Third, the District 
Engineer outlines which parcels benefit from the provision of each phase of infrastructure 
and improvements. Finally, the as-financed costs of the infrastructure and related 
improvements are allocated to the benefiting properties based on the approximate relative 
benefit each unit receives as expressed by that unit's Equivalent Residential Unit ("ERU") 
Factor. 

In allocating special assessments to benefiting property, Florida governments have used a 
variety of methods including, but not limited to, front footage, area, trip rates, equivalent 
residential units, dwelling units, and acreage. Fishkind has determined that an 
assessment methodology based on equivalent residential unit ("ERU") values is 
appropriate. These ERU values equate the benefit received by a stated amount of such 
particular land use category to the benefit received by a typical single-family residence. 
The use of ERU values to estimate the benefit derived from infrastructure improvements is 
recognized as a simple, fair, and reasonable method for apportioning benefit. ERU values 
are a commonly accepted method for calculating special benefit assessments in Florida. 
Here, Fish kind has chosen to assign an ERU value of 1.0 to each single-family lot. 

3.2 Allocation of Specific Assessments 

The CIP cost estimates are outlined in Table 2 and described in detail in the Engineer's 
Report. The maximum amount of bonds required to fund the Phase 1, 2 and 3 
infrastructure costs has been calculated and is shown in Table 3. The bonds principal and 
related annual debt service assessments assigned to Phase 1, 2 and 3 will then be equally 
divided among the number of lots platted for each phase. The resulting bonds principal and 
related annual debt service assessments for Phase 1, 2 and 3, and each lot planned for 
each of these phases, are shown in Table 4. Table 4 becomes important as the land 
within a phase is platted, as specific bond debt service assessments will be assigned to 
the individual Development Units within the relevant phases at this time. 

6 



3.3 Assignment of Specific Assessments 

Assessments securing bonds issued to fund Phase 1 properties will initially be assigned to 
Phase 1 properties on an equal per-acre basis. Similarly, assessments securing bonds 
issued to fund Phases 2 and 3 properties will initially be assigned to Phases 2 and 3 
properties on an equal per-acre basis, respectively. The assessments for each phase will 
then be equally divided among the lots within that phase, as property is initially platted. The 
final assignment of bond debt to a specific lot does not take place until the land containing 
that lot is platted (a platted single-family lot will be referred to herein as a "Development 
Unit"). The specific bond debt assessment that is assigned to platted Development Units 
will be detailed in one or more future supplemental assessment reports, in accordance with 
the principles and allocations set forth in this Methodology. 

3.4 True-Up Mechanism 

In order to ensure that the District's bond debt will not build up on the unplatted land within 
each phase, the District shall periodically apply a "true-up" test. Initially, District bond debt 
shall be allocated to each phase as outlined in Table 3. This bonds debt shall, prior to 
platting, be allocated equally to each of the undeveloped developable acres within each 
phase. As property is platted, "true-up" or density reduction payments may become due 
based upon the amount of bond debt assessments initially assigned to phase. For 
example, as outlined in Table 3, it is estimated that $7,115,000 in bonds principal will be 
allocated to Phase 1 at the time of issuance. This $7,115,000 in bonds principal is 
expected to be allocated equally to the 204 lots planned for Phase 1 at the time Phase 1 is 
platted. However, should it happen at the time of platting that only 203 lots have been 
identified in the plat, the owner of Phase 1 at the time of platting will be required to make a 
true-up payment to the District equal to the bonds principal assessment assigned to one 
single-family residence. The bonds principal true-up test shall be applied at the completion 
of the platting of 50%, 75%, 90%, and 100% of the developable acreage within such 
phase. It is the responsibility of the landowner of record of the affected parcel to make or 
cause to be made any required true-up payments due. This true-up obligation runs with 
the land within the District. The District will not release any liens on property for which 
true-up payments are due until provision for such payment has been satisfactorily made. 
The true-up thresholds for the lands within Phase 1 and Phases 2 and 3 are found in the 
table below. 

7 



Initial True-Up Thresholds 

CategorY 50% 75% 90% 100% 

Ph. 1 Developed Acres 21.8 32.7 39.3 43.7 

Ph. 1 Undev. Acres 21.8 10.9 4.4 0.0 

Debt per Undev. Ph. 1 Acre $162,964 $162,964 $162,964 $162,964 
- ---- ------- ------- ---- ------------------ -. 

Ph. 2 & 3 Developed Acres 33.6 50.4 60.5 67.2 

Ph. 2 & 3 Undev. Acres 33.6 16.8 6.7 0.0 

Debt per Undev. Ph. 2 & 3 Acre $156,119 $156,119 $156,119 $156,119 

In the event that additional land not currently subject to the assessments required to repay 
the debt associated with the CIP is developed in such a manner as to receive special 
benefit from the CIP, it is contemplated that this Methodology will be re-applied to include 
such new parcels. The additional land, as a result of applying this Methodology, will be 
allocated an appropriate share of the special assessments, while all then-assessed parcels 
will receive a relative adjustment in their assessment levels. 

4.0 Contribution of District Infrastructure and/or Improvements 

The costs of the District's CIP will likely be funded by two mechanisms. The first 
mechanism is the issuance of special assessment bonds. The second mechanism is the 
contribution of funds or CIP components to the District ("Contribution"). Property owners 
within the District will have the opportunity to make such a Contribution upon approval by 
the District. 

A District property owner's Contribution will give rise to assessment credits that can be 
applied by the property owner to reduce or eliminate bond debt service assessments that 
would otherwise be assigned to lands within the District to fund the costs of the CIP. Prior 
to a property owner reducing or eliminating bond debt service assessments through a 
Contribution, it must be shown that the improvements funded or contributed by the 
property owner are a component of the CIP, as outlined in the Engineer's Report. The 
property owner will be permitted to apply assessment credits equal to the value of the 
Contribution plus the costs of financing the improvement(s) that would otherwise have 
been incurred by the District if the District were required to issue bonds to fund or acquire 
the improvement(s) (such that the property would not be responsible for bond financing 
costs if the Contribution was made prior to the District's issuance of special assessment 
bonds). A property owner possessing assessment credits due to a Contribution will, in the 

8 



5.0 

District's discretion, have the opportunity to use the assessment credits to adjust bond 
debt service assessment levels of Development Units. 

Bond Assessment Roll 

The table below outlines the maximum bond principal assessment per developable acre for 
lands within Phase 1 and Phases 2 and 3. 

Bond Assessment Roll 

Max Bond Max Bond 
Phase ParceiiD Acres Princi~al Annual (1) 
1 272704722000040130 19.64 $3,200,609 $263,542 

272704722000040170 19.06 $3,106,090 $255)60 
272704722000040190 4.96 ~808,301 $66,557 
Subtotal, Phase 1 43.66 $7,115,000 $585,859 

2&3 272705725500010210 4.80 $749,373 $61,704 
2&3 272705725500010230 4.80 $749,373 $61,704 
2&3 272705725500010290 4.75 $741,567 $61,062 
2&3 272705725500010280 4.75 $741,567 $61,062 
2&3 272705725500010270 4.77 $744,690 $61,319 
2&3 272705725500010260 4.77 $744,690 $61,319 
2&3 272705726000020153 4.82 $752,496 $61,961 
2&3 272705726000020151 4.60 $718,149 $59,133 
2&3 272705726000020140 4.91 $766,546 $63,118 
2&3 272705725500010221 4.81 $750,934 $61,833 
2&3 272705725500010251 4.64 $724,394 $59,648 
2&3 272705725500010240 4.73 $738,445 $60,805 
2&3 272705726000020120 9.85 ~1,537,776 $126,623 

Subtotal, Phases 2 & 3 67.00 $10,460,000 $861,290 

Grand Totals 110.66 $17,575,000 $1,447,149 

(1) Values include a 7.0% gross-up to account for the statutory early-payment discount and the fees and costs of 
collection charged by the county property appraiser and tax collector. 

9 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST- COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

DIG IN .ATTI!t !IClalHWF$T C(h;;lollR Of S/110 TMCT 19, AND f!MilllEIICE AL()IIV THE 110111111 l!llt fH[~LOF S•S.!)'Sl'O(.'-E, n~. 18 H£1' TO lHI: NO!IIIIWT CQflllOI TllfilfOf, SAIIJ 
ffiiiT 1\l.SO DliNG mt 5cUnr ... 'ISr CQIUIEI\ Of SAID lMCT ll; Tltt~t~ AlllNCi Til< WilT UtlE 01 5A1!l TRACT 11 NW15'H"·W, 6«1.90 HOlD A Plllllt QN THE SOUll! 
MMHfAJNW RIGHHlf·WM U!i£ llf fO.'IE5T LA~F DRIVE M:COI\OtNG tO lH~ 1\W' M aH;I)iflfD IN MAl' OOOX 11, PAG~ IC0.108,1'tli\UC MCORD:! [)~ Pll<J; CClllflY, FIOR!OA' 
lHU!(:t lotOH<\ S"-10 scum MAIIUAIJrlW flJGJH-{)t IYAY LIPlE THf FOUDWlti>U ntl';{f [Jj COUII$15' 1) s.S~'4'11).1'-f, ~5.08 rlH; l!!ti!Ct 2)5·$11'1)!1'0&•-f, 11-H UET; Tll.f!ICt!) 
S·89'SS'5t'·f,1tiO.liiHET ro A POJNTOillili £JIST Uti(Of $1\JD'IRAf;TlJ;THflltt V£PAIITIIIG SJ\!OMAINfAJM!Il ~IGIIT-{)f.WI\V UH£, MII>AI.OilGTI<l' EASTUNEOf SAJO TI!Atl 
21 S-00'21'18'·(, Gl8.91 rut ro THE ~01,/TH&IL~ COflll[~ lllflttOI', SAlD POINT /11.50 Bi£1«G nJE NOJIIII'NUT Clllllitfl Of S.AJI)lf\ACT ~1; Tilt riC£ .AI,I)IIG lllE ~O~TH llilf Of 
SAID UACf H S·S9'S1'06"·f,. 3i6.o;lll fffl TO THE NORIIIWT WMtR llili!<Cf; THENCE A\OilG lilt W6r UHE OF SI.IP lAACT 2liHIO"U'11•-w, Eol~~ UETTO A. POirfl ON 
~AID SOUTII M ... ltiTAINHl ~IIT-{)f,WAY UNE Of ftlM!;r LAKE lllliYi; TI!EHrf AIOIIG SND SOUTII MMNfltiNID ll!(lllf-01-'M\V U!r£ TilE fO!LOWltiG 1WO fll COUIUtl: I) 
S W~~'J9•-F, !$7,l'J ffff; lll!NCE 2) S~'S!I'W'·E,1W..W HfflO AI'OIIIT DN '111£ WT Ull!O OfSMOmltCT 2); 11!tN(E 0EPM11rlij SAIO S01Jl)l M!ltHTAIN!O R!Gin·{If.WA.Y 
Ullr, AOOIIlONGTII£ WT UNC OF SAJO TtW:T l3 $«1'13'(1.1•·1', 634.9! rttl YO tilE SDlJTlifAU CORHfll fll[R[Of, SAJD POlin AUO Bfi!IG THf NOJIIIUAST COhNU 0~ !Alll 
lRAI;T l6; Tllfl/t{ 1!1000 Til[ r.ASf UN'!. Of SAJD TRAJ;T ~ S.OO'U':>'l'·L UU3 fl£1T0 A POIUTm!TI!£ 1101\Tl! R!GIIt·Oh'NA! Ull£ Of h'ORnl BOUIIVNW WLST FU O.R. 
BOOK 781,PA~E 10';lllflllf PUIJ4JC R[COI\05 01 POt.I:C(!Mf!V, flO/IID/o; TIIEHUio!OrlllSAJD UOR!ll IIIGIIT.OfWAY Ull£ HRO.R, ~ 781, PM>£ 109, MIDf~ 0.11. DOCK TBI. 
PAGE t.51,ANDI'fR O.li\. BOO~ 7111, I'AG~ ts~. MLIII nlE I'UBUC nu:OliMOf POU(.COUI{)V, H!ltl:ll)A, 11·~9'48'44•-w, l!iOH~ F£L7lOA PotNTONl}IE WfST UNt OFSAIII lMcr 
11l; IIIUICEAlONCi TH~ WfH U~[ Of SA\IllltAUM !1-ro'W116'-f, 633,71 fffiTOTII{ POIIffOf BtGINIII!f'S. 

taOP'llttl' D£WU&.~Il (ONTAINS~II-53 ACnH, MO;U OR iUS. 

A!!!! 
B£(;JN .ATTIIf N0111Ut:Mt CORI'j(R OF SMP lRAf;f 12 tUIO flUN n!IJK(N.OIIG 1111 11151 UNE fllE~fOF, S-00'19'44"-f. !;Sil.l!l fE£Tl0111E 50lJntOOT CO!III(R lliER£0!'; THEIIt;.E 
i.lOii(; THE50Unt utlHlF WD TIIMlS U,ll, 14, l~ lo!ID lfi IU9'21l'~~·-w, 1~8.90 fE£TTQ A POiflT ON nJUAil ~.l(liiJ.Of,WAY UNE OF IIOLLV IIILUOAD, Nil O.R. WOK 
191, PAf;E 71l PUII\!C fl[(CJM5 OF- ~QU:i:OUNT'i, FlO Mill; TIIWCE ALONG 5o\10 Wr RIGHf-llF·WAV Wlf, Mil} Til Ell COIIOJIUING AI.OflG lH~ £/oSJ RIGHHlf.\YA't Of IIOLIY 
HI!LROAJ;I, PERO.II. I'JOOK 781, PAilf 115 PUOU( ~tcllRll~ OF POll! CQUNlY, flORillllii-OO'Wl&•·W,IS4HoS fffTTO II NlJNT ON lHE Nil liTH l!lilE Of SMil TAACT 16; 11M liCE 
AlONG Tfi£ II()Rnt UN F. Of SAIJO TMC!:S n, 15, 14, U "liD ll, sm'34'n•.f, IQ6.11t ~llt TO fl'..! Pl»/lf Of P~lilNIIIN(i, 

PRill' lillY OllS(RJatyco!ITAI~~ lU7 ACRES. MORE~ Lrn. 

A!!!! 
~AT Tllf IIORDIW£~r t:Ollllll'C OF SNO TRACT u;, MD flUN n!UIU ALOIU: n« H'lm!l LINE Of SAJil Ti'Mff 16, 15, 14, NID ll 1Hl9'4J'OO'·E, 1lll'.l.~ nn to TliE 
IIOI!lllfJ\ST COliNE II OF ~410 mACT 13; 1l!WCE AlOI~G lllf fAST lfM Of W-11 lMCJ l! ol\1101}1~ SOUTIUII:l.~ riiOU:CntJN 1lu:li£0F, s.(l;r.7'l5"·f, %M! U£1 TO A POINT 011 
11!($0VIli I lifE OF Till NORTIIWU't II 0} THUOUUIWl$111 OF SMD S£C1101i llol; lmll(£ AI Oil!; SAID ~OOTH UNE H-119"1!'02'•W,l3L~Z fEET; THEIKE MONG IIi[ I«<RfUtHI.'f 
Pj!OIE(:'II(lll Of THe £AST Ut!E Of W'!) JR~cr 1~ NIO nlf ~ UNE Of 51\lll JMCJ 19 H0'4B'<I$•-r. 61iM5 fEU TO 111£ SOUnlWT CO!tllft;t TttrfifOf; ll!(lt({ AtONG 11!£ 
SO liTH lll!e OF $AlP li\ACT 19 H9'JI)'lJ•.w, lU.4l tEET TO Tllf $0Ulti'IIBJ C!nltfll!: Of SoiJil TRAI;f 19, 11\50 llflt«lllit Noti11JWT (:OflNEJI Of SAID lllM:T 31; THllitL 
... I.O.~Ci THE EAST LUll Of mtl tMtT ll $.()0'47'10"·E, 618,70 ffEJlOA POINt OPllliE N~TH iiii>IH·Of·WAY LUI( Of tOUNIY 1'0/lll 547 (W F;«;JIT-{)f-WIIY WJO!Hj; THEIKE 
AlDif(j SII!Q llORTH nJCliH-{)f.WAY UlitS·a9'29'a1'-W, &<17,50 UIIT TO AI'Oitn ON lltt WE!.T llffl' OF ~ID1Jt,M;Tn; llltJIC£ AI.Otlli SAID WEST LUiE11lff.(Of, Alfll N.OIIG Tilt 
WEST UIIF. OF SNO lAACT 11 NW Tilt klt;l~THOJIY ~RJ)Jfc;TIOII TIURI:Of, IHI0'46'2!t•W, tm 63 fUT 10 A POINT Dll Ulf. 1101'1111 UNE OF TilE SOiffiiWBl K Of TH£ 
WI/TIIi'WtSf II Of SAID S£C110.'11)t, AUO bEitlG 11~ SOUTH LN!'f Of THE HORntWHl ll Of !HE SOU»!WtH ll Of SIIID SUTION 04; T1a:ID:E ALOMG Tllf SOUTHEI!L¥ PROJtCOON 
Of lll~ WfST llllf Of SA!IHilJ\016, AtlO 1\lOliG Si\ID WEST UIIE ll.00'~5'Sl"·W, WJ.Sl Utt J{JlJIHDINT OF BE~NJNG, 

PIIOKRfl' DE,KRIIiY! WHTA!It1: 4U7MRES, MOh~ tlilltlS 

AND 

!!.!!!!! AT A SW tnOII IIOllAIW CAP "UJ IIW SI.UIDli!G AT THE SOVIl!WHT COfl.NfR Of .sAID liiACT 21, SAIIl POINT M$0 DHIIG Tlr!II'OR1H~I;QRPI£a Of JIW:T 210f SI.ID 
HOU'I' 111\l fiHO'iE & IRlltr WW'AIN SUBO!VISlllN, Allll n~ll AlONG 111[ W~T Uta llF SAIO lJII.CT 21 IIW"U'41'·W, MU' FEn TO 111~ l!llfll.5ECT10tl OP !JIIo WbT UIIE AND 
lltf SO !JIM MAINTMNLU IUGiff.OH~II't llF ro~~T LA!(~ !lflJI,'E I'll! MAP ~ODIC 17, PA(l£ 100, PUBLIC RfC<lf\OS OF POt!( COUNtl',llOR!Dk nlfm:f.UOJIUSAI[) 50U111 
MJ\LIItoiJNro Rl(ilif.DF·WAV THE IOIIO'..WIG TIIRRI Ill COU~U; ~~ Pl.fl1'47'Sl'·f, 100.~ JEff; l) T11UICE U')~u•.f, 211(;17 IHl; Tllf!ICt )) s-3~"49'49'·1', ltl.44 fEETlO 
ltl£ INftflSltilOPl OF $AID SOUlli IM!rHAIIIEil ~)(jUJ.Of·WIIY 1100 Til~ EA$T !HIE Of ~AID W.Cl22; THftl(£ fllJ]NG SIIID Wl um$-00"11"41'·1', 1140.!8 IU1lOA SJll'll!:Oil 
I\OOAIID t:;AP 'IB '135" STAilDJNO Ill 11'1E SOIJIIIU&T C0911£R Of ~llllMCT ~2, SAJO POUlT lltSO illUIG lliE I!O.UHFJI$TCOAN£llOfSI.!DTMCTZ7l 'niEN(E Al11NG ~SOIJni 
lJIIE OF Wllti!ACT11, AlSO DfiNG lllf 0011111 utlt OF S.AJD liiACT 27, N.fl'l''n'21;'·W, llli.76f[[l 10 111E FOIIIT OF BEI;INNJffil, 

TH~~OO\If OfSCltlflftl IJ\JWS CllriTAlli4.&.2ArJiES, l'oiDRE Ofl\EU, 

AND 

PE1iiN AliiS/B'JitOIII\00 WIIH tAl' 'lB BllS' HNIJMilG Alllt:t IN1£Ml:OION 0!' nlE WUT UNe OF $Jim TI\ACT ZS AIID 'II!. kOI!IlllllijHJ.Of.WAY OfiiOnTII DOUltVAAD 
vmfNII QfFit'IAIR£COIU)51100K 7g~, PA« 10~, E'IJUU(HtCil~ t;)i fOUl (OOfflV, HOAIOA, /tHo Rll'll AtllNG $/Jil WEST UNE IHIO"U'lB'.W, GSS.ol(ll EEt TOA S~" ~IIIIOD 
IIN1l tAp "'u BUS' $TAJlJXNG ATlUE HORTilWUT COhN~ Of SAIO lMcr l~, tAII;l POIIIT MSO I!(IIIG THE SOUtriWqf (:QIIN~R Of S.AJD TMt124' 111!11Ct AlONG nu; Wf.$T 
Lilli' Of MID li!M.1' 24 11-liO"n'.!i!"•W, ~~7 fEET TO A S/8' ti\OH !liJD AIID W 'lii$J:l$' )TANOII'IIi AT lllf INTfi\S(CliOII OHND YiUT UN~ AIIIHllf ~0\JIH MAIN!Alt1[1:J 
1\l(jllf·Or-WAV Df fOIIBf LAKE DRivt PlR MAP I!OOX U, PMi~ 100, "13\JC ltt:CORM Of F()U: t:(IUHJY, FIOOlOo'i; lllfll({ AHIIJG SI\!D SOLtnl MAINTARifD IU(ii!T.Of.WAY TilE 
fOILOWi'kG UGIIr(BI COURSlS: 1) lt-$9'41'20'·f, 1~581 HIT; llltiKt 2)~41!}'2:,'l4'•F, 56-~l Fti;T: IM£N(£ 3} i-llt"Ol'U• ... 2Ul FIETI TltfNCE Hl s.o~;''IH'J!',f, 26.M tiU; 
ntill~ (S)s-59'1e'Ol'.f, 25 t1 fEU; TH~NCE I~) S..W'll'SS"·E. ?lLGQ UF.T; lHEIKf (}] 5-21'111'J4•-r, 2Ui fEET; niENn (B)Hri'00'55"·f, IH) HO 10 1111 EMf liNE OF SA,ID 
lMCT l-4: lllUICf lll.ONG SAID WI UIIE SW'1~'41"•f, SS~,Sl f[ff TO A S/tf' kilO II MO A.<ro CAP 'I~ BUS' STN'lll!IJO lllli!ESO\In1EIIlo1 ~ll~EJII;ItSIJOl!IACTZ4, 5-110 f'()l!IT 
ALSO IIUI«ll!Fl: OOIUH[J.ST I;OII!lER Of 5MP TAACf 15; 11ftfl(£ MOIIG 111( WI UIIE OF .$ltlll TIL'!I;l 25 5-oo' 19'41.'-f, 6l<S,I)t fEEl tO THE IIORTH ftiGITT .Of·WIIY OF IIOIIlll 
B0Ul£YMO WBf PEII OHIW.L R{C:0Rr61!()0K 7~·. PAl;.< 787, PliDUC flECOS:tlS OF I'OLK tOUNlY, fLORIDA; TH~I~tE MOt!Ci SAID tiDl!Tll ~IGHr.tJF.\YAY N-$9'4B'J6"-W, 114.57 
f{ETTO TH~ POJriTOP ~t<lllffl'ING, 

THE ADO'JE 0[5Cit!Dt0 l/INOS COHtJUII9.41l ACRES. MDJ!f 00 ll5~. 

10 



APPENDIX TABLES 

11 



Estimated Number of Single-
Development Phase Estimated Start Date Completion Date Family Lots 

Phase 1 2017 2018 204 
Phase 2 2018 2019 100 
Phase 3 2020 2021 182 

Total 486 

Master Assessment Methodology Fishkind and Associates, Inc. Appendix Table 1 



liP\P~ENbl5<tABltE2 •>·r.:j···••<.,.j .. ''1:,1'··· ·.1 

!d~t~l~~~~,~~t~::: .::l:,d 
!AM~ oEb·&iJ!IEsthcr~p 1 <I< .. "~;. d· ... 
liMA- ~ER~S$E~SMENi fV1ETHO~qE6~Y··~~=PnRT 

Estimated Costs1 Estimated Costs1 Estimated Costs: Total Estimated 
Infrastructure Component Phase 1 Ph_a~_2 ~ba.S_e~ Costs 

Offsite Improvements $120,000 $125,000 $180,000 $425,000 
Stormwater Management $2,427,600 $1,190,000 $2,165,800 $5,783,400 
Utilities (Water,Sewer, & Street Lighting) $1,142,400 $560,000 $1,019,200 $2,721,600 
Roadways $882,300 $432,500 $787,150 $2,101,950 
Entry Features & Signage $100,000 $170,000 $365,000 $635,000 
Parks and Amenities $404,963 $140,000 $255,037 $800,000 
Contingency $200,000 $105,000 $191,000 $496,000 

Total $5,277,263 $2,722,500 $4,963,187 $12,962,950 

Master Assessment Methodology Fishkind and Associates, Inc.. Appendix Table 2 



Total Bonds (all 
Phase 1 Bonds Phase 2 Bonds Phase 3 Bonds Phases} Value 

Bond Fund Value (1) Value (1) Value (1} ill 
Construction/Acquisition Fund $5,277,263 $2,722,500 $4,963,187 $12,962,950 
Debt Service Reserve $544,849 $289,463 $511,537 $1,345,849 
Capitalized Interest $924,950 $491,400 $868,400 $2,284,750 
Costs of Issuance (Including Underwriter's Fee) $367,300 $275,600 $333,600 $976,500 
Contingency $638 $1,037 $3,276 ~ 

Total Bonds Principal $7,115,000 $3,780,000 $6,680,000 $17,575,000 

Bonds Details 

Average Annual Interest Rate: 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 
Term (Years): 30 30 30 
Capitalized Interest (Months): 24 24 24 
Net Annual Debt Service: $544,849 $289,463 $511,537 
Gross Annual Debt Service (2): $585,859 $311,250 $550,040 

(1) The values shown are estimated and subject to change. 

(2) Values include a 7.0% gross-up to account for the statutory early-payment discount and the fees and costs of collection charged by the county property appraiser and tax collector. 

Master Assessment Methodology Fishkind and Associates, Inc. Appendix Table 3 



Bonds Max Bonds Max 
PrinciQal Assmt./ PrinciQal Assmt./ 

Phase Planned Lots/ERUs Category Unit 

Phase 1 204 $7,115,000 $34,877 
Phase 2 100 $3,780,000 $37,800 
Phase 3 182 ~6,680,000 $36,703 

Total, all Phases 486 $17,575,000 

Bonds Max Net Bonds Max Net Bonds Max Gross Bonds Max 
Annual Assmt/ Annual Assmt./ Annual Assmt./ Gross Annual 

Phase Planned Lots/ERUs Category Unit Category (1) Assmt./ Unit (1) 

Phase 1 204 $544,849 $2,671 $585,859 $2,872 
Phase 2 100 $289,463 $2,895 $311,250 $3,113 
Phase 3 182 $511,537 $2,811 $550,040 $3,022 

Total, all Phases 486 $1,345,849 $1,447,149 

(1) Values include a 7.0% gross-up to account for the statutory early-payment discount and the fees and costs of collection charged by the county property appraiser and tax collector. 

Master Assessment Methodology Fishkind and Associates, Inc. Appendix Table 4 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Resolution 2018-11 



RESOLUTION 2018-11 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT EXPRESSING ITS 
INTENT TO UTILIZE THE UNIFORM METHOD OF 
LEVYING, COLLECTING, AND ENFORCING NON 
AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS WHICH MAY BE 
LEVIED BY THE HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 197.3632, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Holly Hill Road East Community Development District ("District") 
was established pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, which authorizes the 
District to levy certain assessments which include benefit and maintenance assessments and 
fmiher authorizes the District to levy special assessments pursuant to Chapter 170 and 197, 
Florida Statutes, for the acquisition, construction, or reconstruction of assessable improvements 
authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has previously adopted Resolution 2017-12 authorizing the use 
of the Uniform Method for the levy, collection and enforcement of non-ad valorem special 
assessments authorized by Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, (the "Uniform Method"), over 
certain lands within the District as described therein; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 841 adopted by the City of Davenport City 
Commission, the extemal boundaries of the District have since been expanded to include an 
additional 14.3 acres, more or less, as described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference (the "Expansion Area"); and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to use the Uniform Method for the levy, collection and 
enforcement of non-ad valorem special assessments authorized by Section 197.3632, Florida 
Statutes, for special assessments, including benefit and maintenance assessments, over the lands 
described in Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the above referenced assessments are non-ad valorem in nature and, 
therefore, may be collected under the provisions of Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, in which 
the State of Florida has provided a uniform method for the levying, collecting, and enforcing 
such non-ad valorem assessments; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, the District has caused 
notice of a public hearing to be advertised weekly in a newspaper of general circulation within 
Polk County for four (4) consecutive weeks prior to such hearing. 

Page 1 of 6 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

SECTION 1. The Holly Hill Road East Community Development District upon 
conducting its public hearing as required by Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, hereby 
expresses its need and intent to use the unifmm method of collecting assessments imposed by the 
District over the lands described in Exhibit A, as provided in Chapters 170 and 190, Florida 
Statutes, each of which are non-ad valorem assessments which may be collected annually 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the purpose of paying principal 
and interest on any and all of its indebtedness and for the purpose of paying the cost of operating 
and maintaining its assessable improvements. By virtue of the passage of Resolution 2017-12 
and this Resolution, the District will have expressed its intent to use the uniform method of 
collecting assessments imposed by the District over all the lands within the current boundaries of 
the District, as described in Exhibit B. The non-ad valorem assessments and the District's use of 
the uniform method of collecting its non-ad valorem assessment(s) may continue in any given 
year when the Board of Supervisors determines that use of the unifmm method for that year is in 
the best interests of the District. 

SECTION 2. The District's Secretary is authorized to provide the Property Appraiser 
and Tax Collector of Polk County and the Department of Revenue of the State of Florida with a 
copy of this Resolution and enter into any agreements with the Property Appraiser and/or Tax 
Collector necessary to cany out the provisions of this Resolution. 

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain 
in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day ofMay, 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Secretary/ Assistant Secretary 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

Exhibit A: Legal Description of Expansion Area 
Exhibit B: Legal Description of Holly Hill Road Each Community Development District 

Page 2 of 6 



EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF EXPANSION AREA 

Page 3 of 6 



EXHIBIT B 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

BEGIN AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 29, AND RUN THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE 

THEREOF S-89°53'06"-E, 326.18 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, SAID PONT ALSO BEING 

THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 21; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 21 N-

00025'33"-W, 640.90 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF FOREST 

LAKE DRIVE ACCORDING TO THE MAP AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 17, PAGES 100-108,PUBLIC RECORDS 

OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA: THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE 

FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES: 1) S-89°49'04"-E, 95.08 FEET; THENCE 2) S-88°09'06"-E, 71.24 FEET; 

THENCE 3) S-89°58'57"-E, 160.16 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 21; THENCE 

DEPARTING SAID MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 21 S-

00023'18"-E, 638.91 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 27; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT 27 S-

89053'06"-E, 326.98 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 

SAID TRACT 23 N-00°23'11"-W, 635.57 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LINE OF FOREST LAKE DRIVE; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE 

FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES: 1) S-89°36'39"-E, 187.39 FEET; THENCE 2) S-89°59'30"-E, 139.69 FEET 

TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 23; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 23 S-00°23'04"-E, 634.92 FEET TO THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 26; 

THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 26 S-00°22'59"-E, 635.38 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 

NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF NORTH BOULEVARD WEST PER O.R. BOOK 781, PAGE 709 OF THE PUBLIC 

RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF WAY LINE PER O.R. BOOK 

781, PAGE 709, AND PER O.R. BOOK 781, PAGE 667, AND PER O.R. BOOK 781, PAGE 696, ALL IN THE 

PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, N-89°48'44"-W, 1305.66 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST 

LINE OF SAID TRACT 29; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 29 N-00°26'06"-E, 633.72 FEET 

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PROPERTY DESCRIBED CONTAINS 28.58 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

AND 

BEGIN AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 12 AND RUN THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE 

THEREOF, S-00°39'44"-E, 650.29 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE ALONG THE 

SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACTS 12, 13, 14, 15 AND 16 N-89°20'55"-W, 1628.90 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 

EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF HOLLY HILL ROAD, PER O.R. BOOK 781, PAGE 713 PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, AND THEN CONTINUING 

ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF HOLLY HILL ROAD, PER O.R. BOOK 781, PAGE 715 PUBLIC RECORDS 

OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA N-00°29'26"-W, 643.68 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID 

TRACT 16; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACTS 16, 15, 14, 13 AND 12, S-89°34'47"-E, 

1626.84 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PROPERTY DESCRIBED CONTAINS: 24.17 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

Page 4 of 6 



BEGIN AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 16, AND RUN THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 
SAID TRACTS 16, 15, 14, AND 13 N-89°43'00"-E, 1309.54 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
TRACT 13; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 13 AND THE SOUTHERLY PROJECTION 
THEREOF, S-00°47'35"-E, 667.62 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST X OF THE 
SOUTHWEST X OF SAID SECTION 04; THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE N-89°38'02"-W, 331.52 FEET; 
THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY PROJECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 19 AND THE EAST LINE 
OF SAID TRACT 19 S-00°48'45"-E, 667.55 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE ALONG 
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACT 19 S-89°30'27"-W, 331.42 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
TRACT 19, ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 31; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID TRACT 31 S-00°47'10"-E, 628.70 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF COUNTY 
ROAD 547 (80' RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTH); THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE S-89°29'00"
W, 647.50 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 32; THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE 
THEREOF, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 17 AND THE NORTHERLY PROJECTION THEREOF, 
N-00°46'25"-W, 1298.68 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST X OF THE 
SOUTHWEST X OF SAID SECTION 04, ALSO BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTHWEST X OF THE 
SOUTHWEST X OF SAID SECTION 04; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHERLY PROJECTION OF THE WEST LINE 
OF SAID TRACT 16, AND ALONG SAID WEST LINE N-00°45'52"-W, 669.51 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

PROPERTY DESCRIBED CONTAINS: 44.47 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

BEGIN AT A 5/8" IRON ROD AND CAP "LB 8135" STANDING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 
22, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF TRACT 27 OF SAID HOLLY HILL GROVE & 
FRUIT COMPANY SUBDIVISION, AND RUN ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 22 N-00°23'47"-W, 
642.49 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID WEST LINE AND THE SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY 
OF FOREST LAKE DRIVE PER MAP BOOK 17, PAGE 100, PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES; 1) 
N-89°47'53"-E, 100.29 FEET; 2) THENCE S-89°09'22"-E, 206.27 FEET; THENCE 3) S-89°49'49"-E, 20.44 
FEET TO THE INTERSECTION OF SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY AND THE EAST LINE OF SAID 
TRACT 22; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST LINE S-00°22'41"-E, 640.18 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD AND CAP "LB 
8135" STANDING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 22, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 27; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACT 22, ALSO 
BEING THE NORTH LINE OF SAID TRACT 27, N-89°55'26"-W, 326.76FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED LANDS CONTAIN 4.82 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
AND 

BEGIN AT A 5/8" IRON ROD WITH CAP "LB 8135" STANDING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE WEST LINE 
OF SAID TRACT 25 AND THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF NORTH BOULEVARD WEST PER OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 794, PAGE 787, PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND RUN ALONG SAID 
WEST LINE N-00°22'38"-W, 635.40 FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD AND CAP "LB 8135" STANDING AT THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 25, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID 
TRACT 24: THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID TRACT 24 N-00°22'38"-W, 640.57 FEET TO A 5/8" 
IRON ROD AND CAP "LB 8135" STANDING AT THE INTERSECTION OF SAID WEST LINE AND THE SOUTH 
MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY OF FOREST LAKE DRIVE PER MAP BOOK 17, PAGE 100, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA: THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTH MAINTAINED RIGHT-OF-WAY THE FOLLOWING 
EIGHT (8) COURSES; 1) N-89°47'20"-E, 165.81 FEET; THENCE 2)S-89°23'34"-E, 56.51 FEET; THENCE 3) S-

Page 5 of 7 



84°02'15"-E1 28.73 FEET: THENCE (4) S-69°03'33"-E1 26.63 FEET; THENCE (5)S-59°18'02"-E1 25.17 FEET; 

THENCE (6) S-40°32'53"-EJ 25.66 FEET; THENCE (7) S-22°07'34"-EJ 27.32 FEET; THENCE (8)S-Or00'55"-EJ 

14.43 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID TRACT 24: THENCE ALONG SAID EAST LINE S-00o19'41"-E1 556.53 

FEET TO A 5/8" IRON ROD AND CAP "LB 8135" STANDING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 

241 SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID TRACT 25; THENCE ALONG THE EAST 

LINE OF SAID TRACT 25 S-00°19'41"-E1 636.04 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF NORTH 

BOULEVARD WEST PER OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 7941 PAGE 7871 PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY} 

FLORIDA; THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY N-89o48'36"-W1 324.57 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED LANDS CONTAIN 9.48 ACRES1 MORE OR LESS. 

ALL THE ABOVE DESCRIBED LANDS CONTAIN 111.52 ACRES1 MORE OR LESS 

Page 6 of 6 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Resolution 2018-12 



RESOLUTION 2018-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE HOLLY 
HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING PROPOSED BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019; 
DECLARING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS TO FUND THE PROPOSED 
BUDGETS PURSUANT TO CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; SETTING PUBLIC HEARINGS; ADDRESSING 
PUBLICATION; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors ("Board") of the Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 
("District") prior to June 15, 2018, proposed budgets ("Proposed Budget") for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2018 and ending September 30,2019 ("Fiscal Year 2018/2019"); and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the District to fund the administrative and 
operations services (together, "Services") set forth in the Proposed Budget by levy of special 
assessments pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes ("Assessments"), as set 
fmih in the preliminary assessment roll included within the Proposed Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that benefits would accrue to the properties 
within the District, as outlined within the Proposed Budget, in an amount equal to or in excess of 
the Assessments, and that such Assessments would be fairly and reasonably allocated as set forth 
in the Proposed Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Proposed Budget, including the Assessments, 
and desires to set the required public hearings thereon; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. PROPOSED BUDGET APPROVED. The Proposed Budget prepared by the 
District Manager for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as 
the basis for conducting a public hearing to adopt said Proposed Budget. 

2. DECLARING ASSESSMENTS. Pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, 
Florida Statutes, the Assessments shall defray the cost of the Services in the total estimated 
amounts set fmih in the Proposed Budget. The nature of, and plans and specifications for, the 
Services to be funded by the Assessments are described in the Proposed Budget, all of which are 
on file and available for public inspection at the "District's Office," 313 Campus Street, 
Celebration, Florida 34747. The Assessments shall be levied within the District on all benefitted 
lots and lands, and shall be appmiioned, all as described in the Proposed Budget and the 
preliminary assessment roll included therein. The preliminary assessment roll is also on file and 
available for public inspection at the District's Office. The Assessments shall be paid in one 



more installments pursuant to a bill issued by the District in November of 2018, and pursuant to 
Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, or, alternatively, pursuant to the Uniform Method as set forth in 
Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. 

3. SETTING PUBLIC HEARINGS. Pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and 197, 
Florida Statutes, public hearings on the approved Proposed Budget and the Assessments are 
hereby declared and set for the following date, hour and location: 

DATE: 
HOUR: 
LOCATION: 

July 18,2018 
10:45 a.m. 
Offices of Cassidy Homes 
346 East Central Avenue 
Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

4. TRANSMITTAL OF PROPOSED BUDGET TO LOCAL GENERAL 
PURPOSE GOVERNMENT. The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the 
Proposed Budget to the City of Davenpmi and Polk County at least 60 days prior to the hearing 
set above. 

5. POSTING OF PROPOSED BUDGET. In accordance with Section 189.016, 
Florida Statutes, the District's Secretary is further directed to post the approved Proposed 
Budget on the District's website at least two days before the budget hearing date as set fmih in 
Section 3, and shall remain on the website for at least 45 days. 

6. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE. The District shall cause this Resolution to be 
published once a week for a period of two weeks in a newspaper of general circulation published 
in Polk County. Additionally, notice of the public hearings shall be published in the manner 
prescribed in Florida law. 

7. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any pali thereof. 

8. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF MAY, 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

By: ___________ _ 
Its: ------------------



RESOLUTION 2018-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE HOLLY 
HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING PROPOSED BUDGETS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019; 
DECLARING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS TO FUND THE PROPOSED 
BUDGETS PURSUANT TO CHAPTERS 170, 190 AND 197, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; SETTING PUBLIC HEARINGS; ADDRESSING 
PUBLICATION; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors ("Board") of the Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 
("District") prior to June 15, 2018, proposed budgets ("Proposed Budget") for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2018 and ending September 30,2019 ("Fiscal Year 2018/2019"); and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the District to fund the administrative and 
operations services (together, "Services") set forth in the Proposed Budget by levy of special 
assessments pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes ("Assessments"), as set 
forth in the preliminary assessment roll included within the Proposed Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the District hereby dete1mines that benefits would accrue to the properties 
within the District, as outlined within the Proposed Budget, in an amount equal to or in excess of 
the Assessments, and that such Assessments would be fairly and reasonably allocated as set forth 
in the Proposed Budget; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Proposed Budget, including the Assessments, 
and desires to set the required public hearings thereon; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. PROPOSED BUDGET APPROVED. The Proposed Budget prepared by the 
District Manager for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as 
the basis for conducting a public hearing to adopt said Proposed Budget. 

2. DECLARING ASSESSMENTS. Pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, 
Florida Statutes, the Assessments shall defray the cost of the Services in the total estimated 
amounts set forth in the Proposed Budget. The nature of, and plans and specifications for, the 

. Services to be funded by the Assessments are described in the Proposed Budget, all of which are 
on file and available for public inspection at the "District's Office," 313 Campus Street, 
Celebration, Florida 34747. The Assessments shall be levied within the District on all benefitted 
lots and lands, and shall be apportioned, all as described in the Proposed Budget and the 
preliminary assessment roll included therein. The preliminary assessment roll is also on file and 
available for public inspection at the District's Office. The Assessments shall be paid in one 



more installments pursuant to a bill issued by the District in November of 2018, and pursuant to 
Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, or, alternatively, pursuant to the Uniform Method as set forth in 
Chapter 197, Florida Statutes. 

3. SETTING PUBLIC HEARINGS. Pursuant to Chapters 170, 190, and 197, 
Florida Statutes, public hearings on the approved Proposed Budget and the Assessments are 
hereby declared and set for the following date, hour and location: 

DATE: 
HOUR: 
LOCATION: 

July 18,2018 
10:45 a.m. 
Offices of Cassidy Homes 
346 East Central A venue 
Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

4. TRANSMITTAL OF PROPOSED BUDGET TO LOCAL GENERAL 
PURPOSE GOVERNMENT. The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the 
Proposed Budget to the City of Davenport and Polk County at least 60 days prior to the hearing 
set above. 

5. POSTING OF PROPOSED BUDGET. In accordance with Section 189.016, 
Florida Statutes, the District's Secretary is further directed to post the approved Proposed 
Budget on the District's website at least two days before the budget hearing date as set forth in 
Section 3, and shall remain on the website for at least 45 days. 

6. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE. The District shall cause this Resolution to be 
published once a week for a period of two weeks in a newspaper of general circulation published 
in Polk County. Additionally, notice of the public hearings shall be published in the manner 
prescribed in Florida law. 

7. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
p01iions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 

8. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF MAY, 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Secretary 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

By: ___________ _ 
Its: -------------



Holly Hill Road East COD 
FY 2019 Proposed O&M Budget 

YTD Actual Anticipated Anticipated FY 2018 FY 2019 
Through 04/2018- Total FY 2018 Adopted Proposed 

03/31/2018 09/2018 Budget Budget 

Revenues 

On-Roll Assessments $ $ $ $ $ 142,800.00 

Developer Contributions 59,450.00 119,225.00 178,675.00 180,000.00 72,200.00 

Inter-Governmental Revenue (North Blvd COD) 25,000.00 

Net Revenues $ 59,450.00 $ 119,225.00 $ 178,675.00 $ 180,000.00 $ 240,000.00 

General & Administrative ExQenses 

Supervisor Fees $ 5,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00 

0&0 Insurance 2,250.00 2,250.00 2,800.00 

Trustee Services 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 

Management 10,000.02 9,999.98 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 

Engineering 1,377.50 13,622.50 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 

Dissemination Agent 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 

District Counsel 11,032.35 13,967.65 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 

Audit 2,000.00 4,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 

Travel and Per Diem 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 

Telephone 8.44 191.56 200.00 200.00 200.00 

Postage & Shipping 62.94 237.06 300.00 300.00 300.00 

Copies 196.35 303.65 500.00 500.00 500.00 

Legal Advertising 1,823.57 6,176.43 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 

Bank Fees 250.00 250.00 

Miscellaneous 1 '100.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 

Web Site Maintenance 2,750.00 150.00 2,900.00 2,900.00 2,900.00 

Dues, Licenses, and Fees 175.00 175.00 250.00 250.00 

Aquatic Contract 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 

Total General & Administrative Expenses $ 36,676.17 $ 74,248.83 $ 110,925.00 $ 109,000.00 $ 99,800.00 

Field ExQenses 

General Insurance $ 2,750.00 $ $ 2,750.00 $ 6,000.00 $ 3,100.00 

Irrigation 1,000.00 

Landscaping Maintenance & Material 65,000.00 65,000.00 65,000.00 47,164.00 

Landscaping Improvements - Mulch & Flowers 9,720.00 

Fertilization 5,616.00 

Contingency 5,473.00 

Streetlights 9,792.00 

Total Field Expenses $ 2,750.00 $ 65,000.00 $ 67,750.00 $ 71,000.00 $ 81,865.00 

Cabana & Pool ExQenses 

Security $ $ $ $ $ 7,000.00 

Maintenance Staff 8,750.00 

Contingency 5,192.00 

Electric 11,083.00 

Cabana Electric 1,167.00 

Pool Electric 2,188.00 

Cable Television 525.00 

Property & Casualty 3,500.00 

Equipment Repair & Maintenance 2,042.00 

Pest Control 583.00 

Signage & Amenities Repair 438.00 

Swimming Pools 11,200.00 

Pool and Cabana Water 4,667.00 

Total Cabana & Pool Expenses $ $ $ $ $ 58,335.00 

Total Expenses $ 39,426.17 $ 139,248.83 $ 178,675.00 $ 180,000.00 $ 240,000.00 

Net Income (Loss) $ 20,023.83 $ (20,023.83) $ $ $ 



REVENUES: 

Holly Hill Road East COD 
FY 2018-2019 Debt Service Budget 

Series 2017 Special Assessment Bonds 

Special Assessments Series 2017 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 

Series 2017 -Interest 11/01/2018 
Series 2017- Principal 05/01/2019 
Series 2017 -Interest 05/01/2019 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

EXCESS REVENUES 

Series 2017 -Interest 11/01/2019 

FY 2018-2019 
Proposed 
Budget 

$ 359,163.75 

$ 359,163.75 

$96,796.25 
$70,000.00 
$96,796.25 

$ 263,592.50 

$ 95,571.25 

$ 95,571.25 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Acquisition of Common Areas (Citrus Isle) 



PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 

Jason E. Merritt, Esquire 
HOPPING GREEN & SAMS, P.A. 
119 South Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED is executed as ofthis day of May, 2018, 
by EAST TENTH, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, whose address is 3000 Bayport 
Drive, Suite 745, Tampa, Florida 33607 (hereinafter called the "grantor"), in favor of HOLLY 
HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special
purpose government, whose address is 12051 Corporate Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32817 
(hereinafter called the "grantee"). 

[Wherever used herein, the terms "grantor" and "grantee" shall 
include the singular and plural, heirs, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns of individuals, and the successors and 
assigns of corporations, as the context requires.] 

WI TN E S SETH: 

That the grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of $10.00 and other valuable 
consideration, receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, hereby grants, bargains, sells, aliens, 
remises, releases, conveys and confirms unto the grantee, all that certain land situate in Polk 
County, Florida, further described in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

Subject to restrictions, covenants, conditions and easements, of record; however, 
reference hereto shall not be deemed to reimpose same. 

TOGETHER with all the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging 
or in anywise appertaining. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the same in fee simple forever. 

AND the grantor hereby covenants with said grantee that the grantor is lawfully seized of 
said land in fee simple; that the grantor has good right and lawful authority to sell and convey 
said land; and hereby warrants the title to said land and will defend the same against the lawful 
claims of all persons or entities whomsoever claiming by, through or under grantor. 

Grantor represents that grantor has complied with the requirements of Section 196.295, 
Florida Statutes. 

Note to Recorder: This deed conveys unencumbered property to a local unit of special-purpose government for no 
taxable consideration. Accordingly, pursuant to Rule 12B-4.014, F.A.C., only minimal documentary stamp tax is 
being paid hereon. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the grantor has hereunto set its hand and seal the day and 
year first above written. 

Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of: 

Witnesses: 

Name: ---------------------------

Name: ---------------------------

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ______ _ 

EAST TENTH, LLC, a Florida limited 
liability company 

By: 
Wayne Watters, Manager 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of May, 2018, by 
Wayne Watters, as Manager of East Tenth, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, on its 
behalf. 

(SEAL) 
Signature ofNotary Public 

Name ofNotary Public 
(Typed, Printed or Stamped) 

Personally Known OR Produced Identification _______ __ 

Type of Identification Produced: ____________________ _ 

2 



EXHIBIT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TRACTS A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H, and K, TOGETHER WITH "CITRUS ISLE LOOP", "CITRUS 
ISLE BOULEVARD", "CITRUS ISLE DRIVE" and "CITRUS ISLE STREET", CITRUS ISLE, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 166, PAGE 44 
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

3 



BILL OF SALE 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that EAST TENTH, LLC a Florida limited 
liability company ("Seller"), and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other 
valuable consideration, which has been or will be paid to it by the Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District, a local unit of special-purpose government established 
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes ("District"), has granted, bargained, sold, transferred 
and delivered, and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell, transfer, and deliver unto the 
District, its successors and assigns, the following described property, assets and rights, to wit: 

1. Any drainage improvements or stormwater management systems, 
including but not limited to lakes, ponds, fountains, water control 
structures, pipes and other water conveyance structures, as well as all 
catch-basins and related stormwater facilities (including without limitation 
curbs, gutters and inlets), located within the property described on Exhibit 
A; 

2. Any plants, trees, timber, shrubbery, and other landscaping located within 
the property described on Exhibit A; 

3. Any entry monuments and other hardscape features located within the 
property described on Exhibit A; 

4. All streets, roads, and associated improvements located within the 
property described on Exhibit A. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all of the foregoing unto the District, its successors and 
assigns, for its own use forever, free and clear and discharged of and from any and all 
obligations, claims or liens. 

AND the Seller does hereby covenant to and with the District, its successors and assigns, 
that it is the lawful owner of the above-described personal property and assets; that said personal 
property and assets are free from all liens and encumbrances; that Seller has good right to sell 
said personal property and assets; that all contractors, subcontractors and material men 
furnishing labor or materials relative to the construction of the personal property and assets have 
been paid in full; and that Seller will wanant and defend the sale of its said personal property and 
assets hereby made, unto the District, its successors and assigns, against the lawful claims and 
demands of all persons whosoever. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF Seller has caused this Bill of Sale to be signed in its name on 
the day and year above-written effective as of May 2018. 

Signed, sealed and delivered by: 

Witnesses 

Signature: ------------------

Printed Name: ----------------

Signature: ________________ __ 

Printed Name: ---------------

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ____________ _ 

EAST TENTH, LLC, 
a Florida limited liability company 

By: 
Wayne Watters 
Its Manager 

THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT was acknowledged before me this day by Wayne 
Watters, as Manager of East Tenth, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, to me known to be 
the person who signed the foregoing instrument and who acknowledged the execution thereof to 
be his/her free act and deed for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. He_ has produced 
satisfactory evidence with an identification or _ is personally known to me. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal, this ____ day of May, 2018. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

Commission Expiration (SEAL) 

Exhibit A- Legal Description 



Exhibit A - Legal Description 

TRACTS A, B, C, D, E, F, G, H, and K, TOGETHER WITH "CITRUS ISLE LOOP", "CITRUS 
ISLE BOULEY ARD", "CITRUS ISLE DRIVE" and "CITRUS ISLE STREET", CITRUS ISLE, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 166, PAGE 44 
OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA. 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Agreement Between Creative Association Services, Inc. 
and the District for Landscape Maintenance Services 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN CREATIVE ASSOCIATION SERVICES, INC. AND THE 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 161h day of May, 2018 (the 
"Date of Agreement") by and between: 

Holly Hill Road East Community Development District, a local unit of special
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated in the City of Davenport, Florida, and whose mailing address is c/o 
Fishkind & Associations, Inc., 12051 Corporate Blvd., Orlando Florida 32817 
(the ''District"); and 

Creative Association Services, Inc., a Florida corporation, with a mailing 
address of 346 East Central Avenue, Winter Haven, Florida 33880 (hereinafter 
"Contractor", together with District the "Parties"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes (the "Act"), by ordinance adopted by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Davenport, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, 
constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to retain an independent contractor to provide landscape 
maintenance services for those lands known as Citrus Isle within the District as further identified 
in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is qualified to provide landscape maintenance 
services and has agreed to provide to the District those services identified in Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference herein ("Services"); and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and 
correct and by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 



SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 

A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional landscape and 
inigation maintenance services within presently accepted standards. Upon all Parties signing this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with the Services identified in Exhibit A. 

B. While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may 
be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all 
aspects to assure completion of the Services. 

C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this 
Agreement. Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. 

D. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are 
subject to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor 
hereby agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. 

SECTION 3. SCOPE OF LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The duties, obligations, 
and responsibilities of Contractor are to provide the material, tools, skill and labor necessary for 
the Services attached as Exhibit A. Contractor agrees to provide such services for those areas 
identified in the Service Area Map attached hereto as Exhibit B. To the extent any of the 
provisions of this Agreement are in conflict with the provisions of Exhibit A, this Agreement 
controls. 

SECTION 4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR'S PERFORMANCE. The Contractor agrees, as 
an independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such services as specified in this 
Agreement or any addendum executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work order by 
the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor. All work 
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and 
shall be in accordance with industry standards. The performance of the Services by the 
Contractor under this Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written 
instructions issued by the District. 

A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in 
this Agreement or any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of 
services to the District, such work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if 
described and delineated in this Agreement. 

B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment 
of any work or services not included in Section 3 unless the District, through an authorized 
representative of the District, authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work. 

C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District's 
representative with respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement. The District's 

2 



representative shall have complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, 
interpret and define the District's policies and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, 
elements, and systems pertinent to the Contractor's services. 

(1) The District hereby designates the District Manager to act as its 
representative. 

(2) The Contractor agrees to meet with the District's representative no 
less than one ( 1) time per month to walk the property to discuss 
conditions, schedules, and items of concern regarding this 
Agreement. 

D. In the event that time is lost due to heavy rains ("Rain Days"), the 
Contractor agrees to reschedule its employees and divide their time accordingly to complete all 
scheduled services during the time during the same week as any Rain Days. The Contractor 
shall provide services on Saturdays if needed to make up Rain Days, but shall not provide 
services on Sundays. 

E. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its 
residents, and landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from 
Contractor's activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours. 

F. Contractor shall be obligated to ensure that all trees, plants or other 
vegetation that are located near any roadways and being maintained in accordance with this 
Agreement comply with all local, State and Federal line-of-sight requirements. 

SECTION 5. COMPENSATION; TERM. 

A. As compensation for the Services described in this Agreement, the District 
agrees to pay the Contractor Six Thousand One Hundred Dollars ($6,100) per month, for an 
annual total of Seventy Three Thousand Two Hundred Dollars ($73,200). Work shall commence 
upon the Date of Agreement set forth above and shall continue for a period of twelve (12) 
months, unless terminated earlier in accordance with Section 14 below or renewed in accordance 
with Section 5(B), below. 

B. This Agreement may be renewed for two (2) additional one (1 )-year terms 
at the prices provided in Section A of this Section 5. Such renewals shall be contingent upon 
satisfactory performance evaluations by the District and subject to the availability of funds. 

C. If the District should desire additional work or services, or to add 
additional areas to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to negotiate in good faith to undertake 
such additional work or services. Upon successful negotiations, the Pmties shall agree in writing 
to an, addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement. The Contractor shall be 
compensated for such agreed additional work or services based upon a payment amount 
acceptable to the Parties and agreed to in writing. 

3 



D. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment 
to the Contractor that all subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or laborers be paid and require 
evidence, in the form of Lien Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District 
by those subcontractors, material men, suppliers or laborers, and further require that the 
Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of said indebtedness. Further, the 
District shall have the right to require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, evidence 
from the Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of the 
Contractor, as to services to the District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the 
obligations with regard to the withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, 
Workmen's Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll 
deductions from the wages of employees. 

E. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting 
practices. As soon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall 
invoice the District for all services performed in the prior month and any other sums due to the 
Contractor. The District shall pay the invoice amount within thiliy (30) days after the invoice 
date. The Contractor may cease performing services under this Agreement if any payment due 
hereunder is not paid within thi1iy (30) days of the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will 
include such suppmiing information as the District may reasonably require the Contractor to 
provide. 

SECTION 6. INSURANCE. 

A. The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the 
following insurance: 

(1) Worker's Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Florida. 

(2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor's 
legal liability for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and prope1iy 
damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards: 

(i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and 
property damage in connection with any subcontractors' 
operation. 

(3) Employer's Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 
(one million dollars) per accident or disease. 

(4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not 
less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for 
prope1iy damage, providing coverage for any accident arising out 

4 



of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or use by the 
Contractor of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, 
trailers, or other equipment required to be licensed. 

B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as 
additional insured. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the 
Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this requirement. No 
ce1iificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any 
change or te1mination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, 
as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written 
notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable 
insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida. 

C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required 
insurance, the District has the right but not the obligation to secure such 
required insurance in which event the Contractor shall pay the cost for that 
required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that 
may be required in connection with the District's obtaining the required 
msurance. 

SECTION 7. INDEMNIFICATION. 

A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay 
awards, court costs, arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, 
attorney fees, and paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, 
or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered. 

B. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District and its 
officers, agents and employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, 
suits or demands by any person, corporation or other entity for injuries, 
death, property damage or of any nature, arising out of, or in connection 
with, the work to be performed by Contractor, including litigation or any 
appellate proceedings with respect thereto. Contractor further agrees that 
nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's 
limitations on liability contained in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or 
other statute. 

C. In no event, however, shall Contractor be liable for incidental, special, 
punitive or exemplary damages in connection with this Agreement, even if 
notice was given of the possibility of such damages and even if such 
damages were reasonably foreseeable. 

SECTION 8. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of the District's sovereign immunity or the District's 

5 



limits of liability as set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in 
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim 
which would otherwise be baned under such limitations of liability or by operation of law. 

SECTION 9. CoMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION. The Contractor 
shall keep, observe, and perfmm all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, 
rules, regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within 
five (5) days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a repoli of a 
violation or an alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or 
agency or subdivision thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement 
or any action of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with 
respect to terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other 
requirements applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such 
agency within five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or 
report of a violation or an alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such 
te1mination to be effective upon the giving of notice of termination. 

SECTION 10. LIENS AND CLAIMS. The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for 
all labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this 
Agreement. The Contractor shall keep the District's prope1iy free from any materialmen's or 
mechanic's liens and claims or notices in respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason 
of the Contractor's performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately 
discharge any such claim or lien. In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such 
claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in 
addition to any and all other remedies available under this Agreement, may terminate this 
Agreement to be effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination. 

SECTION 11. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A 
default by either pmiy under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at 
law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, 
and/or specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights 
under this Agreement against any interfering third pmiy. Nothing contained in this Agreement 
shall limit or impair the District's right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to 
this Agreement. 

SECTION 12. CusTOM AND USAGE. It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to 
the contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the 
conditions and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement, notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the pali of the District in refraining from 
so doing; and further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its 
rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or 
manner contrary to the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any 
way modified or waived the same. 

SECTION 13. SuccESSORS. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 
6 



upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this 
Agreement, except as expressly limited in this Agreement. 

SECTION 14. TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement with cause by providing thirty (3 0) days' written notice of termination to the District 
stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under 
this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement 
immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District 
shall provide thirty (30) days' written notice of termination without cause. Upon any termination 
of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services 
rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off
sets the District may have against the Contractor. 

SECTION 15. PERMITS AND LICENSES. All permits and licenses required by any 
governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District. All 
other permits or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be 
obtained and paid for by the Contractor. 

SECTION 16. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other. Any purported assignment without 
such approval shall be void. 

SECTION 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. In all matters relating to this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor. Neither the Contractor 
nor employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the 
meaning or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age 
Laws or otherwise. The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any 
one or more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the 
performance of this Agreement. The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create 
any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no 
authority to represent the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless 
otherwise set forth in this Agreement. 

SECTION 18. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 19. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. A default by either Party under this 
Agreement shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity. In the event 
that either the District or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court 
proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing Pmiy shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs 
incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or 
appellate proceedings. 

7 



SECTION 20. AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. None of the provisions of Exhibit A shall apply to this Agreement and Exhibit A 
shall not be incorporated herein, except that Exhibit A is applicable to the extent that it states the 
scope of services for the labor and materials to be provided under this Agreement. 

SECTION 21. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained 
in this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
Parties. 

SECTION 22. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all 
the requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 23. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 
this Agreement ("Notice" or "Notices") shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed 
by First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as 
follows: 

A. If to District: 

With a copy to: 

B. If to the Contractor: 

Holly Hill Road East Community 
Development District 
c/o Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, Florida 32817 
Attn: District Manager 

Hopping Green & Sams, P .A. 
119 S. Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Attn: District Counsel 

Creative Association Services, Inc. 
346 East Central A venue 
Winter Haven, Florida 33880 
Attn: Lauren Oakley Schwenk 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received 
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00p.m. (at the 
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. 
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. 
Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be 
regarded as business days. Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver 
Notices on behalf of the District and the Contractor. Any pmiy or other person to whom Notices 

8 



are to be sent or copied may notify the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address 
to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties 
and addressees set forth in this Agreement. 

SECTION 24. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit 
of the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason ofthis Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 

SECTION 25. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws 
of the State of Florida. All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, 
which shall be Polk County, Florida. 

SECTION 26. CoMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS. Contractor understands 
and agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this 
Agreement may be public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all 
applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to 
Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records 
custodian for the District is Jane Gaarlandt ("Public Records Custodian"). Among other 
requirements and to the extent applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain 
public records required by the District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public 
Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to 
be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or 
confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as 
authorized by .law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract term if the 
Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) 
upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public records in 
Contractor's possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable requirements 
for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are transferred 
by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft 
Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT 

9 



THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT ( 407) 382-3256, 
JANEG@FISHKIND.COM, AND 12051 CORPORATE 
COULEV ARD, ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32817. 

SECTION 27. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or 
unenforceable. 

SECTION 28. ARM'S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated 
fully between the Parties as an arm's length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the 
preparation of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel. In the case of a 
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each 
deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not 
be interpreted or construed against any party. 

SECTION 29. CouNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such 
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and 
acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single 
copy of this document to physically form one document. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

10 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on 
the day and year first written above. 

Attest: 

Secretary/ Assistant Secretary 
Board of Supervisors 

Print Name: ----------------

Witness 

Print Name of Witness 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

By: ______________________________ __ 
Its: --------------------------------
Board of Supervisors 

CREATIVE ASSOCIATION SERVICES, INC. 

By: ------------------------------
Print: -------------------------------
Its: 



EXHIBIT A: 

SERVICES 



Creative 
Association 
Services 

Proposal for Landscaping, Common Areas and Entry Features Maintenance 
For the Holly Hill Road East CDD 

Citrus Isle 

Creative Association Services, Inc. agrees to maintain Citrus lsle as part of the I lolly I !ill Road East CDD 
with forty-two visitations per year as follows and consistent with scope of services provided: weekly 
maintenance services along with weekly grass cutting services beginning April I st thru October 3 1st and 
biweekly lawn culling services from November 1st lhru March 3 1st. The proposed cost for agreed upon 
scope of services wil l be: $73,200 per year paid in monthly installments of $6,100. An invoice will be 
delivered the first week of the current month's service. It is agreed that the invoice will be paid within 
thitty days of being submitted. 

Creative Association Services, Inc. wi ll begin maintenance upon request and will renew automatically 
each year and either party can furnish a thirty-day written notice of cancellation. Licenses and proof of 
insurance will be provided to comply with tl1e company's requirements. Creative Association Services, 
lnc. can not and will not be held responsible for any plant or turf a tea that may die or become distressed 
due to weather conditions (drought, freeze, wind, insufficient irrigation, etc.). 

Services Included in this contract are as follows: 
I. f.'Ot"ly-two cuts a year 
2. Irrigation checked twice a month 
3. Trimmi ng of all Hedges, Shrubs, and Ornamentals twenty-one times a year (Every other cut). 
4. Spraying or hand pul ling weeds in landscaping areas to maintain a neat and clean appearance. 
5. Blowing off all hard surfaces affected by lawn maintenance. 
6. Edging (hard surfaces-weekly, soft edges-biweekly). 
7. Picking up any debris within turf or shrub area (trash, paper, limbs, etc.). 
8. On-site weekly visits with property contact if needed 
9. Fertil ization of turf six times per year aod plant material four times per year along with turf weed 

control every other week. 

Additional services are available at an additional cost: 
I . Mulch (200 yds at $45/yd = $9000) 
2. Annual Flowers (200 4" plants at $2/plant =$400) 
3. Granular and liquid fertilization, insectlcide and fungicide of Bahia turf and plant material four 

times per year, along with turf weed control every other week. $5,436 - billed $1,359.00 
quartel'ly at time of service. (initia l) 

4. Sprinkler repairs that arc associated with damage not caused by Creative Association Services 
wil l be billed at $60/houl' plus any applicable materials. 

Both parties agree to above terms: 

Creative Association Services, Inc Holly Hi ll Road East CDD 

Date Date 

346 EASf CENTRAL AVENUE, WINTER I- lAVEN . FL 33880 • 863.293.7400 



EXHIBIT B: 

SERVICE AREA MAP 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Danielle Fence Proposal for Installation of Walk Gate 



May 8, 2018 

East lOth LLC 
c/o Holly Hill Road East CDD 
Keaton Alexander 
12051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, FL 32817 

Job Site: Cirtus Isle 
Add Gate - south of Lot 80 
Davenport, FL 

Thank you for the opportunity to offer you an estimate for your fencing needs located at the job site 
listed above. Please accept this letter as our Proposal for your review. 

Total Estimate: $1,142.00 

• Install1, 72" x 60" Almond Lakeland® Walk Gate into existing fence line 

Price includes tax, materials and installation 

Danielle Fence Mfg. Co., Inc. will provide a Certificate of Liability Insurance and Workers' 
Compensation Certificate, and will maintain it fully in effect until completion of this contract. 

Signature: _____________ _ Date: _________ _,·enn/MG 



Contact : 

YES NO 
MULTIPLE FENCE STYLES 0 [3' 
SEPTIC.. .... ................ 0 B 

DRAINFIELO • .. .... 0 [;a 
POOL , .... ... ................ 0 [2) 

SCREENED ....... .. ...... .. 0 
TREES I BUSHES . ........ . 0 IZf 
ROOTS .. ............. .... 0 121 
SETBACKS . ... • .. .... 0 !A 
WALL MOUNTS . ....... ... 0 0 

. CORNER LOT . .. ........... .. Q !2f 
CROSS ST. NOTED ...... . .IZJ 0 

BUILDINGS .............. .. 0 0 
SHEDS . ................ ..0 IZJ 
COLUMNS .... .. .......... 0 (2J 
EXISTING FENCL.. . 0 [d 

TEAR DOWN........ ,E) 0 
WoodD \'\ 
Alumlnu~m[J. .!:~. 

· PVC [J/"_ J 

SL~~~~~~~~k 0 ....... . 
FenceD 1f5) 
Gote D v 

PRIVATE UTILITIES .. 0 
PERMIT REQUIRED ...... . 0 

NOC REO'Dtarust soo) 0 
BOA OR POA ....... ..... 0 
0DANIELLE 
0HOMEOWNER 

DBagln without Approval 
nwoil fm ~nntfl'lnl 

-----.X---__.. 



I 
I . 

l 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Payment Authorization No. 26-29 



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization No. 026 
4/13/2018 

Item 
No. 

1 Business Observer 

Vendor 

Legal Advertising 04/06/2018 

Please Return To: 
Holly Hill Road East COD 
c/o Fishkind & Associates 
12051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, FL 32817 

Invoice 
Number 

18-00563K 

TOTAL 

$ 

$ 

General 
Fund 

46.75 

46.75 

;:~~ 
Board Member 



INVOICE 
Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 18-00563K 

Attn: 
Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
'1205'1 CORPORATE BLVD. 
ORLANDO FL 328'1 7 

Description 
Serial # '1 8-00563K 

Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

, 
941-906-9386 x322 

Please make checks payable to: 
(Please note Invoice If on check) 
Business Observer 
'1 970 Main Street 
3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Notice of Board of Supervisors' Meeting 
RE: Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 
Published: 4/6/2018 

Date 04/06/2018 

Amount 
$46.75 

Important Message Paid 6--.:co'---=----l 
Total $46.75 

---------' 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you believe that you qualify for a 15% discount to the second Insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941·906-9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
The Business Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and 
that its information is correct. Nevertheless, we ask that our advertisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 

them as soon as possible. We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors. 



INVOICE 
Legal Advertising 

Holly Iilli Rond Enst Community 
Development Distdct 

Notice of 
Bonrd ofSupcl'\1sors' l\Iccting 

Tho llonrd of Supcnisors of the Holly 
Hill Rond East Community Dc\'clop
mcnt Disttict ("Bonrd") \\ill hold n 
meeting on \Vcdncsdny, April 18, 2018 
nt 10:-1-!i n.m. nt the Onices of Cnssidy 
Homes, 346 Eost Ccntrn] Are., 'Vhllcl' 
Hnvcn, Floridn 33880. The meeting 
is open to the public nnd will he con
ducted in ncmll:lance with provision of 
Florida I.nw r£'1ated to Specinl Districts. 
The lllL'i!ting nmy he continued to a 
dnte, time, and place tu be spedfied un 
the record at the meeting. A ropy of the 
agenda mny he ubtuined nt the uffi~s of 
the District Manage!\ 120.·11 Corpornte 
nlrd., Or)nndu, Floridn :J2R17, during 
nurm11l business hours. 

There may be ucctLSiuns when stnJl' 
or other indhiduals may p1uticipnte hy 
spcakor telephone. 

Any p~:~~un requiring special Hl'CUIH~ 
nttxlations nt these meetings heeause 
of n disobility or physical impairment 
should rontnct the District OJllce nt 
(407) 3B2-:J25tl nt lcnst fm1y-elght (48) 
hours prior to the meeting. If you nrc 
heouing or speech impaired, plense con
tnd the Ploridil Relny Sen~ce nt 1-800-
955~8770, for nid in contacting the Dis
trict Office. 

Ench. pe~on who decides to nppe.'ll 
any decision mndc by the llonrd \lith 
respect to o.ny matter considered nt 
thl} meeting is advised that person will 
need a record of the procccrlingll nnd 
that accordingly, the person mny need 
to ensure thnt n \'crbntim record of the 
proceedings is mndc, including the tes
timony nnd e\'idcncc upon which such 
appeal is to be bnscd. 
District Mnnnger 

6, 20t8 18-005631( 

Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

941-906-9386 x322 

Payment is expected within 30 days of the first publication date of your notice. 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you believe that you qualify for a 15% discount to the second insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941-906-9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
The Business Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and 
that its information is correct. Nevertheless, we ask that our advertisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 

them as soon as possible. We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors. 



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization No. 027 
4/20/2018 

Item 
No. 

Vendor 

1 Fishkind & Associates 

2 

Please Return To: 

OM Fee & Reimbursables: April 2018 

Supervisor Fees - 04/18/2018 Meeting 
Rennie Heath 
Scott Shapiro 
Lauren Schwenk 
John Mazuchowski 

Holly Hill Road East COD 
c/o Fishkind & Associates 
12051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, FL 32817 

Invoice 
Number 

22492 

TOTAL 

General 
Fund 

$ 1,882.26 

$ 200.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 200.00 
$ 200.00 

$ 2,682.26 

Board Member 

RECEIVED /\PH 2 1 2018 



Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
12051 Corporate Blvd. 

Orlando, FL 32817 

Holly Hill Road East COD 
c/o Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
12051 Corporate Blvd 
Orlando, FL 32817 

File· HollyHiiiRoadEastCDD 

Services: 

District Management Fee: April 2018 
Website Fee 
Postage 
Copies 
UPS 

Please include the invoice 
number on your remittance 

and submit to: 
Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 

12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32817 
Ph: 407-382-3256 
Fax: 407-382-3254 
www.fishkind.com 

FISHKIND 
& ASSOCIArES 

Invoice 
Invoice#: j22492 

4/11/2018 

H II H'll Road East OJ.Y I 

Amount 

1,666.67 
125.00 

2.82 
78.00 

9.77 

Balance Due $1,882.26 

RECEIVED APR 1 3 2018 



pltneybowes tWJ 

Account Summary Report 
Date Range: March 1, 2010 to March 31st, 2018 
Meter Group: All Meters 
Meter 1WOO- 1376538 OLD at ORLANDO, FL 
Meter 4WOO- 0347354 at ORLANDO, FL 

Meter Details 

L~~=~~~=--~~~=-~--~~~===~~:~"===r~~ ~M~iNan;-~~-~=l~~ib-er ,--PfiPAcr€~~-t~Pb~~l 
ORLANDO, FL 4WOO- 0347354 0347354 24978470 ' 

ORLANOOI FL 1WOO- 1376538 OLD 1376538 24978470 

Account Summary 

Grand Total $2.820 



Copy Count 

Account: t\O \ l~ tD ~. ~ 
Amount of Copies: 1520 
Total $: _______ __,jJ~'b_o\J_ 

Month:March 



Invoice No 

Invoice Date 

Account No 

Account 

Invoice Detail 

1803075430 

03/21/2018 

W203899987/1 Y9R28 

FISH KIND & ASSOCIATES 

UPS No: 1Z1Y9R281399974458 Shipper 

Pickup Date 03/13/2018 
Service Level 

Weight 

Zone 

Payer 

Next Day Air Saver 
1 lb 

136 

Shipper 

FISHKIND & ASSOCIATES 

12051 CORPORATE BLVD 

ORLANDO 

FL 32817 

JENNIFER GLASGOW 

Receiver 

U.S. BANK, N.A.-CDD 

EP-MN-01LB 

1200 ENERGY PARK DRIVE 

SAINT PAUL 

MN 55108 

LOCKBOX SERVICES-12-

Bill Reference: Greenewav, H M!.!.., -'-H"-H"'-'.;.;M::.C::.,'-'S:::;i:.:.:lv-=ec:..r.=&:...:B:::;l"'"k=-__,.,,.---,,.,..,.-:::..,.---:-::-: 
Greeneway, HM, HH, MC, Silver & Blk v 1 count 

Billing 

Freight 

~ ''"i"'r· -u;:,.-~., -lW~""'"r,;Jr.::,:,~ .;r
7

~ ........ ;~r~·t·:~'i.L ;.J l...j!l •1 . ·\''h·,w ''"i !'f_); ;:::::: 
j'fdl 1 )l"''i...-J\::J ~,.... ~~ U.J 1..J!.:-....-~ 

'~~ i_ 41 n·· V ["\ rp 1C: C' c-
~Jt:Z,((.- c .l~ J!"* ~ ~ c .,;:} .::) 

List Discoun1 

Price Price 

Fuel Surcharge 

68.64 

4.64 

54.91 

3.71 

Total 73.28 58.62,// 

Sub Total 73.28 /?;62 



Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 

Date of Meeting: April18, 2018 

Board Members: Attendance Fee 

1. Rennie Heath X $200 

2. Scott Shapiro X (p) $200 

3. Lauren Schwenk X $200 

4. John Mazuchowski X $200 

6. Andrew Rhinehart $0 

$800 

Approved For Payment: 

~ c-· , A ~ - ~---~ '-----~ 

ana r 

Date ' 



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization No. 028 
4/27/2018 

Item 
No. 

1 Business Observer 

Vendor 

Legal Ads on 04/20/2018 and 04/27/2018 

2 Hopping Green & Sams 
General Counsel Through 03/31/2018 

Please Return To: 
Holly Hill Road East COD 
c/o Fishkind & Associates 
12051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, FL 32817 

Invoice 
Number 

18-00648K 

99861 

TOTAL 

General 
Fund 

$ 1,160.26 

$ 3,498.75 

$ 4,659.01 

~~~ 
Board Member 



INVOICE 
Legal Advertising 

Invoice # 18-00648K 

Attn: 
Fishkind & Associates, Inc. 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD. 
ORLANDO FL 32817 

Description 

Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 

3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

' 941-906-9386 x322 

Please make checks payable to: 
(Please note Invoice# on check) 
Business Observer 
1970 Main Street 
3rd Floor 
Sarasota, FL 34236 

Date 04/20/2018 

Amount 
Serial # 18-0:::-0::-c6::-4:-:8-:-K-:--------------------

$1 '160.26 
otice of Public Hearing to Consider Imposition of Special 

Assessments and Adoption of Assessment Roll 
RE: Holly Hill Road East Community Development District 
Published: 4/20/2018, 4/27/2018 

Important Mes~~ge Paid I () 
Total - $,_1-,·1--'6''-o-.2-6-----l 

Payment is expected within 30 days of the 
first publication date of your notice. 

Attention: If you are a government agency and you believe that you qualify for a 15% discount to the second Insertion of 
your notice per F.S. revision 50.061, please Inform Kristen Boothroyd directly at 941-906-9386 x323. 

NOTICE 
The Business Observer makes every effort to ensure that its public notice advertising is accurate and in full compliance with all applicable statutes and ordinances and 
that its information is correct. Nevertheless, we ask that our advertisers scrutinize published ads carefully and alert us immediately to any errors so that we may correct 

them as soon as possible. We cannot accept responsibility for mistakes beyond bearing the cost of republishing advertisements that contain errors. 



~(JllCI:OfrURUC IIF..\lli~U Til ro:-.-..JfJFJ!. IUI'OSITIU1\ or srF..Ct\f,,\.\.\f.<;.~)ID.'"IS rUR-'il!,\l'iTTU S£t'"IJO~ l;tl.U7, FLniU0.\.!17,1,HmS,II\' nJF.IIOU.Y IIIILJIO.\fl F..\SrCO~UtU:-.Ifn'nE-.\lJ.Jir)lr_•;-rnmmn 

!\OTIO:orPLrnuc IIP.Alll~fl 70CO!-i51rlfllAilOYT10!-i OF A..'i~f!iS11F-'-.TJIOU. t'UR.!Ol'.\:\'TTOliF.-l'TIO~ I!H-'I.il.t1(~)(t.}.ITJlnlfi.\STATITTl".'i, !1\'Tllr.IIOU.\'IIIIJ.R0.\0 rAUCOlHIUNrn· OF.\"F.l.OPm:.'ITDISTRlt'r 
Th-l!•oily lUI f!..ul fA<tC'tOC>!In!Uiily0tul•'{.t>',<11lllbt:i<t r, .. nJt>fS'l("nt-.oo('llo~l•l1 1011! ho.\Jp.J~k horlr•t,H•l \\'t<lnl"\·thy, )hi liS, 201\ J!IO:U J.m. •1,110 f:O.n<.'~nlul.Aimll~, \\1ntrt JI~•ID, fl,.S.'I-"-'O,ItH>Wl<J.rth.-..,\->;(~>nnllJ\lUn'\* 
rr..r.l "ll 11.~ lmr->'ilit-nd •r--ritl W<,..,.,.llll<tn~"·'m J'nP'""'t>""'J' '"' t~<>o£1...! hdt ~<iti.IA!hf II• It] lli:'l JV..:J. F.ut t"•m>nur.hr Dal-d'f"'tnl Oi•tsiot ('tli•trlu"). •d•y'-·H:n•,(.,f,W, h...,.t,to h. .,.., . ..,J f, oh< .... ui..,..,....,J.,Jt<lpl'<ll'.ll- t.or-tht lny, 
n~l«tlt1111..,ilo~f"ntm.•nto.ftht <f"dU l<W••v.tnu. Tht 1111 tl>t,•lr:lprow.J li d<v'.:1 .. ll<i!.-rol" J!l•llll 1~ ftl<tt)..1i .\m•t•lt.J Jn,l k>W•J Ml-!!tt FJI,;'Il-<-~r'• Rt)':Jrt,dVt~l Ulllh ·J~ 'ltl\4 Ctt.t 'lrrf'l"ll<rr-<~1 Jtul"). Thl j'-'l:Hr t.Orin.( \1 h..l~.(t<l!'lhcttJ 
pmu•~t l•l t1uf'l.lt< t;n,t!'O or.J l.?i,Jt.,M.~$/.J<.t.~. ,\~rirti<>o ~ru..- p-q"rtyt<> !,.- ~·~,..,.J 1nJ th( ln-.> ... t '" t..: .._,_,.,,..-.~ t~rul. pko--..- C('l'""'l•·f r-~'r<<t,' m•J 1--t .. ~nrt•Jr~·l ~~ th, ,,fi;...,,rtN- D;·tri.-1'1 nn"'nl.' orr_... l•nt,.J.t :ur. t.ut t'<l'lln! 

·''-rt.~i~~:::::\!!~;~·,~;~~,j~':~::;~J1~:~:!.~:;.~~~~~~~~~j~~~~~~;~f~~!~;l~;~:~,:·~(,~l,_,..h,.ithltlth~tl:.trkt. lh<!n(., .. <k.,<l•m lmrl'n<ttltnto\'lnl'"-"'n"t-h1 m~<MIIJ 1 •i~rt•dl·• it.d ... !~. l-r..1 m f>t( 1'mk.J t.-..w:.l· 
u~p • ... -v.af+<..,_ft(nu.~ f.uibt"J.,"I!l'tl•~l~'{'l' .. "'"fl\~ ,.,..,.,.,hr ~unlitmlt>l '~'!nn<.lu'l<-l•dJ'it>£. h.tnlo~Jr~ !nipti.'l>. t•~--n~d...,.J {tH<ti.~; ~ eth.tlmJ'f"'tm-<nb, d ~·WI<« 'fHl£<>lly~r'<t1b..•l it lhfln'f'"""''.dl t1on.,.,.,fJ,.1l\J :>'1:>.-'t>H• 
al~rin.t t.-mnUlrl•~ .. tlv..,n ll t}..,:aJJr"..--.l'nJ''.J..Jahn~t. 

,~!~:,.~~~~d:r:~~;~t;~;.: ... ~::;~::k'.._~tJ~'::!1f~~'i.:th~~~~~:.~~~~~;,;:.~~f::f1~~~~t!l)::.:::::·~~;~~~t~~;~h~t~~~~·;:;.';h~,\!~~!::;~.;~:.f~t·~~-~~~~f~~~;.,;~~:~·;;l.:;~~·~-~~~~~.:~.::F~:t 
ltnf"'-"U"'t.tllo lo: (llr.J,J l.)·tla Oi•lri<t .. 'il!t, d<!tlmlr.J""' ~ C<fJtliL•w:umnll~r u;r-~ bulo.. Or.n-J"4Utill!"-"' Nf>W',t~..I'IU'~~'lll<l>l<-..'iili .. Jol-.Jte \h..> .... t,;u:J f"f"'IIJH6,..,) "~ th.rb.n.l:iuth-<)· r.oll-.. ,..., n-.uh-::oJJ,'IJt• nr·hir~---.1 ~~ cn-,n 
J.:un !nllw .\> .. ~•m<nt Rtr"'t. .u .. .,._. d.:•aiho.J Ut n>'Nd.ti.lltn th. A•"<>ur~<nt IVJ~•n. I h.> O:.trd\ u.~·•fl•mh .. m N k.<.<·hp.ir.•t.tll ~"""~•l-1..-I~•"IUU~ thf J>i•tri.:t.. Fl<...,~n.-(l!~h tl<l ........ ,.,.,...ot ~J"rt lor "".:~d•t.ul1. 

11u MI>IUI j'riuifJ.] L••totV,c&tl~•i>.t tp!n..'l rilhpuul "'ill N-l>:LUd t-nnp.>,Tlloln! ll'ltf ~ m.ubmm e-flhlrty(:l:l}J•·JN ~.rthf-1•~.\ldibt ;U',-.::ot<1\ tncoch pm•l. 1ht D:.trlct C1J"('U *'' cnll.d '"r.Y .. l\1 m.a~>~oln ret in ro.ITr>n thtn Sl7..17l,<)XIll> 
J..b( ~ N- .1.Nc'fi{!Jr lh!-lliflrk1,tld<i>h>t~((trl Jt.-J (Url.lt.f lttl..OJ.oflnlftf,--ro.mmt.>!l<e>•nl> (~ru.rt,rpJ}ll""-"'t'nJ ln!ttl:.!t. 1:heptt'f<"'i•l initl.J u~aU Jo;b.Jdrtl.u~nm.:tbil u(dlu>i-T: 

.... If--_., pwp-:rlf '-' rf>!t<·l. u<hf-ul.kntUIIGI•Ilhl•l'hu.-2 A(tlt fll•llkt ,.}IJ!» nr.hjt« Ito ~··'~•m •""''"''"li ~r f.1],!<00 b M~dpr!nd("-1 ud ll.~:JSin 
P..!k:Cif.l'nNI lD .\tru ~tHII"I'lil'rln<iptl Jh~ Uallii,\Mllll •~nulaut<-nnt'flU ond ~.uh rntduthll<>l•hhln rJu~.1 c>{ih.t n\<nkt t•}llht tOihj..q I<> "'"~lllllll'lla•..,._untnh <>(f:ll1.10.1l•l:o<>~d prb.rl{'Jl a..d 1!,~11 In 

2jJj\\\j1~!(J<.I'JlCIJ!O II 
l;l)\Uj'J3Mli'trll02'rO l8 
\!Tl;TI~Tl-~Wi'!OIOOO I 75 
:.!)"li\Uj'!1100<1\0H-'l t.j.> 
:J;J;tn;-2J-l<'X\I'HOliO 1.71 
'ljlj'Jl;;'li>OOU10U.O l.i7 
;HliTI>TJf.OOOOlVtlo.l ttol 
2/};tJ>J,li.AIOfMlUIU Ui 
'J)"1it1;71f/.l<'lOO'.)OIIO 1-!JI 
l;-ljtl'::;J.\!000\0lll U.l 
:liJiH'>/2~1)()()\0!!1 46-4 
lPiU~iH.ital\DliO HJ 
2TlitHTJ~UO,.I!J 
2i1i!l~71'1000010ll0 19.6~ 
:!PitHT1!1lo.Xl<110tjO U.Oii 
':!0lii11PiOOIXJlOI;u ~~ 

$7.!'1.17J 
.574!1,1iJ 
5111.Yi1 
$71L~7 
&;HAlO 
&jH,f<iO 
$7H,I!lo'i 
$71i,ll9 
s;--o;_qg 
67.!11.911 
S71l,l'J\ 
$7-l•,U' 
~l.'l..lj,fjli 
U~f.o:> 
n.lOi\l'!-10 
Ho,;,:vn 
.Al7Stl.OOO 

Hl,';lH 
~fil,i\11 
~fit,(Ml 

~61.001 
$>,'1,119 
Mt,;H9 
~l.'lli'l 
$!9,13\ 
$"-'\US 
HUH 
·~~ ... ,, 
¥.11)-.n.\ 
ill6,6'l-1 
S1:T.5-11 
Sl.H,;r'.tl 
il:i.,llj 
!1,-1-17,1'9 

~:~~1J~-;:~;~l~~=~~M~"n~;.:_; ~~~~~rr:~~' ;~:~!u:.;.f~~:':~~~m~~~,b~~:l.:~~~~~~~~; ,7t~~~::~~~,<~~~:;~~11~~~=:~~ 
~~~ Hiurict trU> d •• ,.. .. torlir.<tl} c.l~<t w..J uf<tt.i! tJ .. ..- w.rl>U'Wnll. ,\JJ ;t!I'KtN rn:{'(rty~l\un-!m-.. tht rit;hl to• "i'l"•r •I l~tnU~hnM,~:u.d tl-..1- ri.\};1 tnfi~ 
"rl<lln .. ijut;..n<,.iththtDirlri<:t .. itlint.,~nlf(2tl)•!.},dth.("W···•livndt!\lln.d;:,.., 

.--.!«> "tl \\'t<lnt.d~). )foy 16, ,lJHI •IIO:U a,o, rt:Uii F..ul (.'ntnl .\IUH, \\1ntcr n •• l., n.~,~~o. tJ..t p._,wJ .. u ·~M. ""'hr T"tt~ CJ'I<otl~t;l<> «<trio~! 

~j~.M:t~-";:J,!:~:~~;:L~;~;:~1i~tr~1~t ~;~,t~~;:~,::;·~~:·t::~f:h:~f; :~,0:!~~~.~~.~ 7:~~~';.~~~~ ~~~,:,:~~~~~ ~~!:~~:~~; 
tkmHtl .. ,r;;>ul.~orl,.~rit''J,l ... 

•. ~:rJ:~t·~:-~~:~;:~::~·~~::~.~~;~~:~·:J:.:·;-:_!'j~t~~~~:;h~~~~:J.:;;~;;~r:r;:;__;f.:~;!r:~:~""h~::'h~.;;~~~';:.r..~t· 
J~lJ"k~~~~~·icl!~~1::!.~,r;.·::;~;'~if;~~~:r;;:i:;:~~~~~~m~:;'~~;~ .. ~·~,%~:t~til~t!i:t:~~i:~~~:.~~~~:~~~~:J~;:,:!~~l~:,j~ 
Jt;,tri<ifi&.."C. 

"""" 
Rf.'iUI.IJTIOS'20IIt-!15 

A RF.SflUfTION Ol'TIICBIJ.\Jtll 01' StiJ'YJWISOI\S OI'1111:JIOU.\'UII.LRO.\D 1'..\.'IT 
CO)I}Jlf!'im-- vt:\'H..OP)IL'\1 Dl!.'ffilt.T UOO.\RL.'.:O SPf:<."L\1. A.••'if.'i!>llfi."'\T::l 0:-.1 
"TliP. 1:'1:1'."-"510~ ,\IlEA; L\'Oit'..\TI~R Til F. t.OC..\TlO~, X\nmF. ,Uffi F.<,TI.\l\TEU 
cuo;r oF TIIOST. 1:-:rn.\.<,ntt.:eronr. Ulri\0\'F..ltn.TS wnosr. coST lS 'lo 01:: 
IIF..flt\\'1-Jl 11\' Till: SFJ:Cl\1, A.'iSFS..~)lf.o'HS; PRO\'IDING 111& POIITlOX OF TIIF. 
r ... nli,\UU l'O...~T 01-' TIIF. Ull'IIU\T.\IF-'\U 'TO B~ Dl'J1l..\nD ll\. nil!. SPr..CIAL 
AS."iF.\SllE:\'Tl'i; rf10\'llliSfiTIIIi31,\Sl'ITJI.!N'\\111GI5UCII Sfl:CL\L A..'i.1fS.\llf~'\'TS 
Slf,\11.. 11r. )1,\DF.: l'R0\1Dr.-1G \\l!E.'i SUCII SP£Cl\L. ,\SS£...'-S")(L'\'TS S1L\U, Df. 
1',\IU; UJ-;<>IUXATISG 1 .... '\U.'i Ul'0:-1 \\111(11 nn: lirf.Cl\L. .\SS£S!>11E.'fTS Sil\IJ, 
DJ-: tn1r.o1 rnonms-r. roR A.~ A.".HSSUJ-:]..T FL\T; ,\oomxa" rnnnus.\n\' 
A.'i';f.'>.'illf.'\T ROU" rno\llllli'G 1·on runl.ll'ATIO:i oF nus nr ... m.unos • 

. ~~~~!~t:}~'~;ir:~~~~~~-~~~:'i~%~;~~t~~~~~;~f>~~~~!;;~e~~=~~~~L~~--:~~~ 
'"' \\1lfJlf.\S, «1 &hnh s. 'ltn!\. IU i~w-d •It iii Ctr.!tml"t---om •-.l'tU City tiDl\lllJurt, flo.M..t.l.if,{lthl Oolh'I-U\tt Xrt.. 
oHtOllllwtmJth.-lomilrluNUt<!U:rtrl<11"!n.:lil&~rv~~.o1lnulth'I\~JJJtic>!Ulun:;totM"<'Imhu1lhlntht1o~tdui~ 
tlth.rllittril(lh'~:.I'u''o--.t,l..ru.1:uJ · 

\\11fllfA<:, th! r.,lld c..(S·if'!nh>" (i.hl'tlhu.fl dtl-.1' 0\.<lr\ct ~~,.I}-Ja1n:rUaJ It> un~trt.h,IIIJ.ull. rb>\. c<
uHl•h.. con>tN-i « I'IXU!ulrurl.•r>lu1<,~Mtlht>d,.t'(~ip,!,C;f0ir-t, Of"U.It, u.d/..octu.!r.uio lh< lr!r.vln.,.-lttN ln{'M•::O"all 

!';~f,r,h-::~~~l:,7.'.f:-~d~~~=t;;:Tt~f/••Fffi'<~<wAJr,dJ.udJoM'Xll1.mJt.>MPrthennnfrud!ltr.f"'"t-
\\11t-llfAS,Uolr..>t.Mr.<!.,.h.m~·dd.rmln<'>to>unJutllc.l~till,phn.,c.-uUi.Jh,u:•r.<tNctR"nu'C\Itn:.rt,niUFtolt· 

ttn<l.tquip.~qalrt,<"f'<ralt,tr.d,l:mruir.l.linth-tin(r..,tnl(t~nim(IM·-,:wal.l(t!-..:•lmJ"'"""m<lllt1&J.:T>Ndinlhtt>i:llri...·t'• 
.lour..VJ<>-<,J R~<~nrJ !d~>tlt l.'Jt;i•t<r'l i:t("rt • .LttJ )Jmh 21. 'Mii. :Ut>.;kdhmt.:l u E•hlt>lt.\u.J ioo"l'•Uiul hmin 
b) uruu.«' ... hl<.h !t.o.l4dntl--..t :JJit~J.]ltr..pnn!fll<ltl\ t.t><,..Jf~ f_orlhf D.f'-Ull;'t!Aru; ~n..l 

WIII:Rt:.\..'i, illlbt tht ht!tlnllre.t t.l'th!- Di•lrid '''f'l) tt.,.pijt dlh<'in>pnnr~I'U f,, •f""W "-"<>ll<'"tlli !>11"-UIIt l•t 
Oup!!TI90,f'luOO•Snhne<.(•IV'A.=i.1t'iYnU');u.d • 

\\11£Rf.AS, th~ Dtrt,i.:-t h fmj\-~lut.! by l'lu('lor lW, ll>t l"n!Mnn <.'<rinmu~· p.,_,~'{'fl'l(.tl Ui•trkt kt. Ch.t(hr liU, 
So~tmtnl.o.lud,\h.cm.llr>~Mcth:<lnO.I.Jlh,~:l..-"--:.l~lnai;iJ'dlnrn>un"'~u.lnJl'furtrr19i,lh.l'ni5,mt~kt}.>ffuttl-.. 
J.,,y,('~tk-..tba uJ J:~f<:11....-.n.mt ,J}.', ... ,\JY:oht<.mAJH-<'m<n!t. n-.riJ,S<-.l.l:n\t-<. t~ linlr-""'• ru~ ,.U...:..._.--ul.t,h, !<-T(Jill', 

tun<lftlrl«f<o(J.)I\.<\I\lrl,lnltii~t.-nltrd.t<(ollp.t{ltr.llf,trdrm.lctl.b:l!Mhrtj'fV\m'.(lllJI.I'.Jt.1tmp.»f.illyl...-i(J/k'ctUt 
"""'"''Ilh'.th;.u-.J 

\\llr.R£.\.<;.IhttrJiri.:thmbyl{ttnnl~~-<'1ilh.Ubl:llt1ih\till.ut~tolMf~rtylmptmtJ,lr.dr.<fn&:th-t~rty"ithln 
!1>.!- £"1•1111h1An-.. ln tkursoualoftt..-.,.,Nr><!ill, Jnddui •f"d..tl u.J.<.>_•wla\l"lll'l<-m>•kin l'f'-1•'-'l~'fl tutl~l .. r,-tfiu 
rcu lnJ lt ~~ !Orth In tl.t.-irw.lrJ a..-1 f(IJ~>Y;J HMrr .(o,..,,...r.t }[,J},,J..~•J;'illlr;>>rt, di!oJ ).llf'[h 21, 201!i. t.lt-'•hcd 
~~:~~~~-~~:!tR::~l>t~-ouJknl.,hynfu-.rctl-td•>t~ttwmc..>tf<'Ottl\J~".u-d..Orl.tn&.,nvri .. bml;(tl-.e 

WllrJtf'.\5, 11-.l: 0\rtrlrtlutcbrdctcnnl.~t thu W k·~ull¥nt~ tr> N k•\!J "OilY~ uckd 11-.t b...r.~f..t ~ tM tnl"ltJ' 
impNHd,ia•l'-'!!1!,1;\h~p."'P<!'I}'""}'llllht ~:qumlt..o,\r<a.. 

llOW,TI\EJU:TORI!, III: Jr nr.S£11,\l:D n\'TIIE: nn.\RD m· Sl!JIER\lSOJl'l OFTIIf.IIOI.L\" 
11111.JI.O.Uli-:\STCOlU!ll!>'ffi'llf.\'Fl.OPJI8t.'TDIST1Ul'r: 

1. lhrrut-ot~u:.-l.~r.oll--• .-·;.l;..,...r;ndp!...r.•'"'i'l"'-"iiX:l.tM•for,t~..-hJ't>llt=r.t.oa.rr<l<tuit .. ti~r • .tu·Mt.\,"hl.h 
I< ut £\.:. .u. t}~ Pi:rtri<t R•~•·nho-lj....-J. r..,hJMtDil .!•.,<>~~ fltv.-:i ~~ oJW.~ J.•tf"'Ur tn•r<d~l<'IUdv u.r1>< \xllhr~.>. 

:2--- Thtl,..>l<1\lmJ.!lJ w<tofth<-IIr}'{U<UI'lll< Lt ~11-!>"iJ,S>u (the 'Utlm.utJ.('"'f). 
1 ~ At!;;.<on1nt1 'IL'i!lt.\dr:~y l.p~ntlml-Ul)' ~17.S;5,1Kl.J, 1\1\llh 1/!rlofo the }-,ui~li!J. \'rl'i, ('lu.1 filluri,,t-nhttd 

,,,.lf, rnplt.!ltuJ ln!tn-.t,cJ.U t<:n)..e TO-tn>ttn! •'-"'lir:t.QM): 
-4. 11-.. mLIIB•rh •hich tt.r .l,.-,...-.•1'1'>n'J• ,I-..IJI k •Pf .. r&.,,J alhi p>-ll i.o ,_, t•rthl!l •:~hibltll, lc.f..rJln! f"'"u;."" ~..,. 

•uj~<n><llhl._...r ... .,..,cntn<d-Llli-'(l'-
r.. ll;t, \"• "l!'olllh 1blll k- J,\W <'t\ all kt1 ..._,J I.Jr.oh. h<~l<~oiiu: tJ-1...,. "ithl..a \1;<' C. {u.rt•~n ,\n.a_tdj. inl~,( •n~ n>:>ll&-1· 

Ni' llfl,..--<JnllD: mJ abut!/~~ l!f""l cu. h fLIIft'IJ'I~!Jl< rr\( tot,_;,_; >JtrN-nlf'dU<!tMrdt!· .v~! ~fl.h.- rd..11gi1~<1 t,- tl;r :UOd fin.' at 
Jl.>thurirufl>rr""'idcJf;>r. 

l'i. 1hu~Uut~.lllh~lX•tJi,..-tJI.tn-nhOifu:>,1n:UI.N.!II'.<clll!'hi>h£rri,,;tMuut~l"u"'"'tntohc.I\JlnplL111UJ] 
•['i~;fi~loud!,mV.~thtimrr>•I<IT\<'~Uj~Jthtr.'II!!UilJwll!;ftlwfmpn.•lm<!ll\!llt('l'lhlch•hl:lkl"1~"t.oln.•p~I.Jn 
t.)·lhep-:<.N~ 

T• Cult:r~ioj; "ith !i'o.ol Jtlrln .. bl<.h tk A!'-'l•m<nU..., ~finr .... .J... thr .-\~I("-' <noll\~ •hall !<" r1l.l in lht ~rnre th111 
{1u)thiri)'IM•l1\in.,uf1r.,._nl'- n..tA,.,...,,m.mts m1yf-< r1)1l!Utll:..! u~llrnu.r..dl11ht Wllo! tnlllllU'lllrt~J..\~>nm 
\..lle< 1ni"l.'..d•J ft<JnuiDile>Ou~<fln Jhr'.d1 ~l1l"lts;p~n)l,,\ lvr•n1r. tlul.i.a th!~WAIIIttmik.naii-U'I "'":.),,....., 

llOIJ.l'IIUJ.RQ\Df.A.qro~I~IUN'm'nF.\'Fl.J'lPliD.IPl'ITl!.tiT 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST CDD 

t;umr,;ntrr.ttN,t d n&rll,,r;thl-AI<ullnfalt\t t"Y11tt1nol>!f l•thr- W.<ltiillll.nf}tlt; 1.: ifdi1nm'ntJt-.y >1-.~ n:.tr .. -t \II 
t.: i.to.la N<t inttt<-..,.t,.tJ-..1' A....,•m<t~ltuuyl..allt<t"l uholhtf'lli~~'nniittdl.) '"''· 

a. ThcJX,tti.t)!l.lll~rhL•oa'(d\llkllck&pnlimiurrl.l;o;utnut<tfll~ID~nl<'"ihtl-w:rr.n}f>i~>f•'-"--~·tr'o<nt 
&«nb-....tl.r!f.,\IMt n h.<ttt.l. ahi.:b•hPJ!htkuu.Jlu.dtln-n...:d..thtalm'JM•fkr.tt'.llo andWu ... ~•ntntl.{:oiiii11tdt 
~t•-trJ.N<ldlm-lltldth.:t~1l"ml.-nJum.!k,t.ollr.tnuh;t.n•lti..ohth.oiOJ.•h•t::"nlrn.yt ... dili.!d,"hilb1;t.:.t<:'l'.llllfl'lli; 

h~~~~~f~~h~!~~~~'f~~~?.!::;~~~~~=~.d~rtduh>..f.th~,.~t.tnd1·~<vut~tGkt•<n'"J"r 
111ruh.rp.::nu,<lntn-.<Udtknlll:rr;oy~Nrcntl.-P.•mltr.dkhurd._,tnth.-rniri.-tr•~A ... hi~\u;,,..(,hrA•
k:<ln~ttli wthoo un\lro,(l>ilh-: lmrnnt<>11lltJ., thee<«! doqro( IU IIU-'1~1 C>f{H)ll".<cfol th<rt '4'\",'lf\.., ...,..,.,! tl-..!no.ftnt..
"-'"'->11<1 lj;IIIUI ~Hh ptl'f"rt}' .U f.mplVItJ. 

to. lt.t llistnct )IIUQ-rb hmbydmct~>l 1.<1 0'1~ lhl<R<v~"tlr"'ln t...rnb\ilhM to.i-...{(~c:a ""<'.. £'ftt<u!l)nub) 
Ut. l~><'"l'JJ"''( ,;ut.-nl dn:llbJh<t"iV,U. 1\!ll'nu:.olr u.J l<>r~,;,t.: •t>th ro!h.tn<ti ... u "'-'> 1~ "'tJ\nJh} h-.., wduin.J. 
it\ tbtN.t lnitr<'-Utol'tlt P:.trk1.. 

n. llohRt••'uthnolu!IM-<r.-L'<i'fidO~IIf''l'!llir-u"'-.9'-

f,\..o;sl:ll.\~OAUot'Tf.DTIIl'i,ISTIU\'Or)IARCI!,2J111'. 

IIOUYIUU.FI.O..\n FA'iT 
COlllllr.'ITI\'Dt\l:lOPlll'XT 
Ol.'ill!.llT 

r.\lo.lblt.\: .Arr..:I!Jtd :utd P.utattd )Ju!lr Er.,_ir~d\ P><f"lli.,doJ<d !obnh21,lLJI\ 
[\hU.lt Bt ).rr.noltJ uoi Jkn.>..IIJ)lJ...'"-"1 A<=HillH:tl )ld •• ..&-.1.>JJ ~ll'ltbtld ~lmh 21, rot~ 

~~~::1~~~~------·--------------·-----~-·-----·---------~nK 



t-lopping Green & Sams 
Attorneys and Counselors 

119 S. Monroe Street, Ste. 300 
P.O. Box 6526 

Tallahassee, FL 32314 
850.222.7500 

================================= STATEMENT ================================= 

April 25, 2018 
Holly Hill Road East CDD 
cjo Fishkind & Associates 
12051 Corporate Blvd. 
Orlando, FL 32817 

Bill Number 99861 
Billed through 03/31/2018 

General Counsel/Monthly Meeting 
HHECDD 00001 RVW 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED 
03/01/18 SSW Prepare for and attend development status conference all. 

03/08/18 ssw 

03/12/18 ssw 

03/12/18 AHJ 

03/13/18 ssw 

03/13/18 AHJ 

03/14/18 RVW 

03/14/18 ssw 

03/15/18 ssw 

03/15/18 AHJ 

03/16/18 ssw 

03/20/18 RVW 

03/20/18 ssw 

Prepare for and attend development status conference call. 

Confer with Gaarlandt regarding meeting agenda items. 

Prepare resolution setting hearing on uniform method of collection, 170.03 and 
170.07 assessment resolutions; confer with Gaarlandt regarding same; prepare 
notice of establishment; confer with Plenzler and Wood regarding amendments 
to master engineer's report and master methodology report. 

Prepare comments to draft meeting minutes and agenda; prepare comments to 
amended and restated engineer's report; confer with Rowan regarding same. 

Confer with Rowan regarding amended and restated engineer's report; prepare 
agenda items. 

Confer with LaRocco regarding revised boundary of district. 

Prepare resolutions declaring assessments, setting public hearing, and setting 
public hearing on uniform method for expansion area; confer with Plenzler and 
Rowan regarding amended and restated reports regarding expansion area; 
prepare comments to amended and restated assessment methodology. 

Prepare for and attend development status conference call. 

Transmit to Polk County supervisor of elections ordinance establishing district, 
ordinance expanding boundaries of district, and boundary map. 

Follow-up with Rowan regarding revisions to amended and restated master 
engineer's report; prepare notice of boundary amendment; confer with 
Gaarlandt regarding same. 

Travel to board meeting. 

Prepare comments to revised amended and restated ;;1ssessment methodology 
report; prepare for meeting. · 

0.60 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

1. 70 hrs 

0.90 hrs 

1.00 hrs 

0.20 hrs 

1.90 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.90 hrs 

1.20 hrs 

1.10 hrs 



General Counsel/Monthly Meetin Bill No. 99861 Page Z 

======================================================================================= 
03/21/18 RVW Prepare for and attend board meeting. 

03/27/18 AHJ Prepare updates to district file regarding executed 170.03 and 170.07 
assessment resolutions; confer with Gaarlandt and Allende regarding executed 
notice of boundary amendment. 

03/29/18 ssw Prepare for and attend development status conference call. 

Total fees for this matter 

DISBURSEMENTS 
Document Reproduction 

Conference Calls 

Total disbursements for this matter 

MATTER SUMMARY 

Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 
VanWyk, Roy 
Warren, Sarah S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS MATTER 

BILLING SUMMARY 

Jaskolski, Amy H. - Paralegal 
VanWyk, Roy 
Warren, Sarah S. 

TOTAL FEES 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

TOTAL CHARGES FOR THIS BILL 

3.30 hrs 
4.50 hrs 
6.60 hrs 

3.30 hrs 
4.50 hrs 
6.60 hrs 

125 /hr 
310 /hr 
245 /hr 

125 /hr 
310 /hr 
245 /hr 

Please include the bill number on vour check. 

3.10 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

0.30 hrs 

$3,424.50 

66.00 

8.25 

$74.25 

$412.50 
$1,395.00 
$1,617.00 

$3,424.50 

$74.25 

$3,498.75 

$412.50 
$1,395.00 
$1,617.00 

$3,424.50 

$74.25 

$3,498.75 



HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Payment Authorization No. 029 
5/4/2018 

Item 
No. 

Vendor 

1 Dennis Wood Engineering 

2 

Please Return To: 

Engineering Services Through 04/01/2018 

Duke Energy 
Acct: 97939 61028 ; Deposit 
Acct: 57840 25499 ; Deposit 

Holly Hill Road East COD 
c/o Fishkind & Associates 
12051 Corporate Boulevard 
Orlando, FL 32817 

Invoice 
Number 

2048 

TOTAL 

General 
Fund 

$ 1,207.50 

$ 240.00 
$ 240.00 

$ 1,687.50 



Dennis Wood Engineering, LLC 

1925 Bartow Road ,Suite l 01 
Lakeland, Fl 33801 

Bill To 

Rennie Heath 
Cassidy Holdings, LLC 
346 Enst Central Avenue 
Winter Haven, FL 33880 

Quantity 

I Principal Engineer 2-26-18 
0.5 Principal Engineer 3-!l-1 B 
1.5 Administrative Assistant 3-12-1 R 
0.5 Principal Engincer3-t3-IB 
1.5 Principal Engineer 3-16-18 

2 Principal Engineer 3-19·18 
I Principal Engineer 3-20-18 

1.5 Principnl Engineer 3·21-18 
0.5 Principal Engineer 3-27- I 8 
0.5 Principal Engineer 3-29-18 

/2~ 
I 70J.. 

Holl:· Hill Road f.asl CDD 
Billing 2-26-18- I !i tlm1 4-1-18 

Description 

Invoice 
Date Invoice# 

~/6/2018 2048 

P.O. No. Terms Project 

Rate Amount 

125.00 125.00 
125.00 62.50 
55.00 82.50 

125.00 62.50 
125.00 187.50 
125.00 250.00 
125.00 125.00 
125.00 187.50 
125.00 62.50 
125.00 62.50 

--
Total $1,207.50 



DUKE 
ENERGY® 

STATEMENT OF SERVICE 
[~(~~ 
~ 

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: 
1-877-372-8477 

WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com 

TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: 
1-800-228-8485 

PIN: 568174431 

METER READINGS 

APRIL 2018 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COD 
ATTN: JOE MCCLAREN 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817 

SERVICE ADDRESS 
102 CITRUS ISLE LOOP LITE, 
ENTRY LITES 

DEPOSIT 

TOTAL CURRENT BILL 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT 

DUE DATE 
MAY 16 2018 

NEXT READ 
DATE ON OR 
ABOUT 

Payment of this statement within 90 days from the billing date will 
avoid a 1% late charge being applied to this account. 

ENERGY USE----

BF _IJL_DEF _20100424_212257 _1.CSV-1311 Hl00034820 
DETACH AND RETURN THIS SECTION 

Make checks payable to: Duke Energy 

ACCOUNT NUMBER- 97939 61028 

013111 00003.4820 

•••tlllt'I••JJ'JIItll •• ,llltJ1'ttl•l1111111111 1ti•J•IJIIIIII•'•II 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST CDD 
ATIN: JOE MCCLAREN 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

ZP03 0001430 

P.O. BOX 1004 
CHARLOTTE, 
NC 20201-1004 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
240.00 

DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
ON ACCOUNT 

NONE 

240.00 

240.00 

$240.00 

•I 
I' .. 

240.0~1 
PLEASE ENTER 

AMOUNT PAID 

I 
979396102830000002400020000000000000000002400020100000000009 



DUKE 
ENERGY® 

FOR CUSTOMER SERVICE OR 
PAYMENT LOCATIONS CALL: 
1-877-372-8477 

WEB SITE: www.duke-energy.com 

TO REPORT A POWER OUTAGE: 
1-800-228-8485 

PIN: 568174431 

METER READINGS 

STATEMENT OF SERVICE 

APRIL 2018 

HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST COD 
ATTN: JOE MCCLAREN 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817 

SERVICE ADDRESS 
569 CITRUS ISLE LOOP, WELL 
DAVENPORT FL 33837 

DEPOSIT 

TOTAL CURRENT BILL 

TOTAL DUE THIS STATEMENT 

DUE DATE 
MAY 16 2018 

NEXT READ 
DATE ON OR 
ABOUT 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE 
240.00 

DEPOSIT AMOUNT 
ON ACCOUNT 

NONE 

240.00 

240.00 

$240.00 

Payment of this statement within 90 days from the billing date will 
avoid a 1% late charge being applied to this account. 

---- ENERGY USE ----

BF _BL_DEF _20180424_212257_1.CSV-13110.000034820 
DETACH AND RETURN THIS SECTION 

Make checks payable to: Duke Energy 

ACCOUNT NUMBER • 57840 25499 

013110 000034820 

•••tllulluultlh u •• ,lllulltt'•l't h llutl1t'•t•1111t 1tl•1•1 1 
HOLLY HILL ROAD EAST CDD 
ATTN: JOE MCCLAREN 
12051 CORPORATE BLVD 
ORLANDO FL 32817-1450 

ZP03 000·1429 

P.O. BOX 1004 
CHARLOTTE, 
NC 20201-1004 

MAY 16 2018 

240.00 

PLEASE ENTER ~ 
1---'-"AM,O:::::U.!.!.NT:....:Pc:..A::!'ID'-,=--_j· 

578402549960000002400020000000000000000002400020100000000009 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Monthly Financials 

(provided under separate cover) 





Holly Hill Road East 
Community Development District 

Number of Qualified Electors in District 

(provided under separate cover) 


